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OVERVIEW OF THE LOCKYER VALLEY
Lockyer Valley is rated among the top ten most fertile farming areas in the 
world. Affectionately known as the South East Queensland food bowl, this prime 
agricultural area is laden with features. There are 2,272 square kilometres of rich 
land that includes the Great Dividing Range, national parks, reserves, creeks, 
lakes, parks, two nature parks and many waterways and green open spaces.

Council acknowledges the Traditional Owners of the Lockyer Valley region as the 
Ugarapul People. It has also been identified that the Laidley region was home to 
the Kitabul People, but little information is known about the family group and their 
history within Lockyer. Importantly, the region is still home to many Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander people with 2.9% of the population identifying as Indigenous.

The Lockyer Valley Regional Council estimated resident population for 2017 was 
40,189, with a population density of 0.18 persons per hectare. According to the 
2016 Census, 5,095 people in the Lockyer Valley hold post school qualifications 
and 19% of people 15 years and over also volunteer, this is above the State 
average for giving back to community.

Since 1897, the University of Queensland Gatton Campus has been nestled within 
the region with staff and students researching or studying agriculture, animals, 
veterinary science and the environment.

The region is also serviced by twenty-six public and private schools, twenty-one 
early childhood education services, two hospitals and over forty-five community 
run organisations. There are also over 3,085 businesses operating out of the 
Lockyer Valley.

One of our biggest future challenges is managing the expected population 
and residential growth predicated for the region. It is projected that by 2031 
approximately 57,225 people will call the Lockyer Valley home which will require 
a significant increase in dwellings to accommodate the growth. 

Gatton has been identified as the principal rural activity centre in the region for 
future growth in the business, retail and commercial, government and health 
sectors. Laidley and Plainland will grow to provide local services to supplement 
the role of Gatton. 

ACHIEVING THE OUTCOMES OF THE 
COMMUNITY PLAN 2017-2027
‘Lockyer – Our Valley, Our Vision’ Community Plan 2017-2027 details the 
community‘s vision to the year 2027. The Community Plan establishes outcomes 
for the Lockyer Valley community that guides the priority actions which are to 
be undertaken by a wide range of stakeholders including Council. The outcomes 
identified in the Community Plan along with its themes form the basis for the 
development of the Council’s Corporate Plan 2017-2022. This Annual Report, is 
the first to report on the progress Council has made in achieving the identified 
outcomes of the Corporate Plan 2017-2022 and the Community Plan 2017-2027.
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INTRODUCTION
This Annual Report, for the financial year 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018, describes Lockyer Valley Regional Council’s 
achievements in providing services to the Lockyer Valley community. It displays Council’s progress in delivering 
the actions in our Corporate and Operational Plans, along with statutory reporting requirements, providing a 
culmination of Council’s regular reports to the community and stakeholders. Council’s 2017-2022 Corporate Plan 
provides the focus and direction for Council over the twelve month period from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018.

The Annual Report provides the community with operational and financial information about Council’s 
performance against the outcomes and service delivery commitments set out in the Corporate and Operational 
Plans which were developed in response to the Lockyer Valley Community Plan 2017-2027.

COUNCIL’S STRATEGIC PLANNING FRAMEWORK
The diagram below represents the strategic planning framework used by Council:

DETERMINE AND IMPLEMENT PROJECTS AND INITIATIVES 
(Incorporated in to Business Unit Plans)

MONITOR AND REPORT ON PERFORMANCE

IDENTIFY COUNCIL OUTCOMES AND PRIORITIES 
FOR THE NEXT FIVE YEARS 

COMMUNITY PLAN

OPERATIONAL PLAN 
ANNUAL BUDGET 

CORPORATE PLAN

QUARTERLY REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT

LOCKYER VALLEY COMMUNITY’S LONG TERM VISION
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VISION, MISSION AND VALUES

VISION

We will deliver sustainable services to enhance the liveability 
of our community while embracing our economic, cultural and 
natural diversity.

MISSION

Lead, engage and empower.

OUR VALUES

Values form the basis of our culture. They add meaning to 
work and they provide a basis for consistent planning and 
decision making across the organisation. The desired values 
and behaviours that every employee of Lockyer Valley Regional 
Council is expected to demonstrate in their daily activities, in the 
way they behave and in the way they make decisions are:

LEADERSHIP 

We lead through excellence and partner with the community to achieve Council’s 
vision and mission. 

ACCOUNTABILITY 

We accept ownership of our role and take responsibility for our actions. We are 
results focused, take pride in our successes and efforts and learn from our mistakes.

INTEGRITY

We strive to be valued and trusted by the Lockyer Valley community. We are 
respectful, open, transparent and honest in our dealings with the community.  
At all times we act in the best interests of the community. 

COMMUNICATION

We embrace diversity and communicate openly and honestly. We listen  
actively, consider and value the views of others. Our communication is clear, 
concise and consistent. 

CUSTOMER FOCUS

We strive to engage and communicate with our internal and external customers to 
meet agreed outcomes. We identify and aim to meet the needs of all customers in 
a responsive and equitable manner.

TEAMWORK AND COLLABORATION

We value creative thinking and look for opportunities to collaborate and connect 
to deliver a better Lockyer Valley. We work together by recognising and sharing 
our talents, skills, experience and knowledge. 
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MESSAGE FROM THE MAYOR

FINANCIAL POSITION 

I am very pleased to be able to announce that Council 
has again achieved a genuine operational surplus 
building on our strong financial position.

It gives me an enormous sense of pride to see how well 
this current team of Councillors have worked together 
to deliver what I believe are the building blocks for our 
future by adopting a back to basics approach. 

We were able to achieve an operational surplus of 
more than $3 million which is a real credit for an 
organisation this size.

We continue to carefully monitor our spending and 
have paid down an additional $5 million in loan 
repayments and plan to continue paying down our 
debt going forward.

Our Ten Year Financial Plan sees Council in a strong 
financial position forecasting continued surpluses and 
accelerated debt repayment, all of which put Council in 
a good position to be able to weather any unforeseen 
economic stresses such as natural disasters.

PARTNERSHIPS AND HONEST 
CONVERSATIONS 

Part of our success in being able to deliver on our 
promise of financial sustainability has been through 
our commitment to being open and transparent and 
having honest conversations. 

It’s the same approach which has seen a number of 
major milestones achieved for our great region. 

As an organisation we were able to secure a 
developer to construct a $20 million backpacker 
country retreat that is now operational and which 
provides not only a real country lifestyle experience, 
but also safe and affordable accommodation for the 
regions transient workforce. 

We have had meaningful discussions with the new 
Chief Executive Officer of Inland Rail about the 
implications the project will have on the Lockyer 
Valley. As a Council we acknowledge the project is of 
national significance but there is no doubt it will also 
come at a cost for our region. 

Being able to have an honest relationship with the 
Inland Rail Chief Executive Officer allows us to address 
our concerns and ensure they are taken seriously.

We have partnered with key stakeholders and 
established the Lockyer Valley and Somerset Water 
Collaborative that is fighting for the long term water 
security for our region.

Through the Collaborative we have been able to 
secure a $1.4 million grant to develop a business 
case that will look at options to protect our water 
supply for generations to come for both industry 
and residential sectors. 

We have managed to get a regional hospital on the 
State Government’s ten year projects list that will see 
the facility fully constructed and operational within 
the next decade.

This is a major achievement for Council which will no 
doubt see an increase in health services being offered 
within the region. 

We continue to partner with our neighbouring 
councils and work with key stakeholder groups such 
as the Council of Mayors to ensure as a region our 
voice is being heard and considered on the big stage.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the  
Chief Executive Officer, Mr Ian Church and my  
fellow Councillors for their staunch commitment 
throughout the year.

Together we have made some tough decisions 
to further secure the region’s financial future 
and have continued to build on our strong 
relationships throughout the community by having 
genuine, honest and engaging conversations with 
stakeholders and residents.

We have played a part in developing a positive 
culture within the organisation and increased our 
customer service focus and enhanced our connected 
council culture which ensures everything we do as an 
organisation is for the betterment of the region.

The saying you are only as strong as the people you 
have working for you is very true and I would like 
to offer my genuine and heartfelt thank you to our 
leadership team and staff for the incredible work they 
do within the community every day in helping us 
achieve our organisational and operational goals. 

 

Councillor Tanya Milligan 
(Mayor)

Community and Council 
Development
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The 2017-18 Annual Report represents a milestone 
as it is reporting on the first full year of operation of 
Council’s 2017-2022 Corporate Plan.  

We achieved many great things during the 2017-18 
financial year.  I am very proud of the commitment 
of Lockyer Valley Regional Council staff to our 
community and every achievement highlighted in this 
Annual Report represents a contribution by our staff 
towards achieving Council’s vision for the region and 
the organisation.

OUR CUSTOMERS AND COMMUNITY

We continued with our in depth “Voice of the 
Customer” surveys with another four  
undertaken on different areas of Council’s 
operations during the year. The feedback 
received has been turned into recommendations 
for improving our focus on customers and the 
efficiency with which we do business.  

A number of staff were dedicated to working on 
drafting the new Lockyer Valley Planning Scheme to 
replace the outdated Laidley and Gatton Schemes.  
The Scheme will ensure that development in our 
region, whether a simple boundary change or a  
major commercial project, is able to be completed 
effectively and efficiently. 

OUR STAFF

We continued to focus on improving the skills and 
capability of our staff to enable them to deliver 
on Council’s priorities.  This included improving 
our communication and engagement with 
staff on important matters and implementing a 
comprehensive leadership development program for 
all managers, supervisors and coordinators. 

We have very successfully implemented an initiative 
called “Connected Council”.  This cross Council 
initiative addresses the issues raised by staff in 
response to the 2017 Employee Opinion Survey, 
including building trust among staff, using customer 
feedback to improve what we do, cooperating across 
work areas and building a positive culture. This initiative 
is an integral part of building our values based culture. 

Enterprise Bargaining negotiations were commenced 
and substantially completed during the 2017-18 year 
for both the Field and Officers Certified Agreements. 
The negotiations were undertaken in an atmosphere of 
good faith and cooperation, which resulted in benefits 
for all parties to each agreement. The Field Agreement 
was successfully put to a staff vote on 17 May 2018. 

OUR COMMITMENT TO  
GOOD GOVERNANCE

Council has always been committed to a strong 
governance framework and ensuring that risks to  
the organisation are recognised and managed.  
This commitment was demonstrated through 
renewed focus on Council’s Audit and Risk 
Management Committee.

The outstanding internal audit recommendations 
reduced by 35% during the year and the Committee 
undertook a comprehensive self-evaluation process 
resulting in improvements to its operation. Risk 
Statements for all areas of Councils operations 
continued to be developed with staff for inclusion  
in a comprehensive Corporate Risk Register.

OUR FINANCIAL FUTURE

2017-18 saw a continued emphasis on laying the 
foundations for a strong long term financial future, with 
the achievement of a genuine operating surplus, positive 
financial sustainability ratios for the current year and 
next 10 years, and a significant reduction in overall debt 
with an additional $5 million one off repayment.

Council continued its focus on efficiently managing 
assets with the emphasis on renewing existing assets 
rather than building new.  As an example of the focus 
on asset renewals, Council resealed 16kms of bitumen 
roads and refurbished over 29kms of gravel roads 
during the year.

In yet another important milestone, Council adopted 
the 2018-19 budget on 5 June 2018. This was only 
possible due to the great team effort between 
Councillors and staff and the strong commitment to 
achieve this goal by all parties.

I thank the Mayor, Tanya Milligan, and Councillors 
for the leadership and vision that you provide to 
the Lockyer Valley Regional Council.  With your 
support we are developing an organisation focused 
on providing outstanding service to our community.  
I also thank the committed staff of Council who 
dedicate themselves to improving the liveability of 
this region for our residents, both present and future.

Ian Church 

Chief Executive Officer
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LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL 
HIGHLIGHTS 2017-18

2205

403

79

9332

145,181

$30K

7,495

130,104

302

179

NEW MEMBERS JOINED 
THE LOCKYER VALLEY 
LIBRARIES IN 2017-18

PLUMBING APPLICATIONS 
COMPLETED BY LVRC 
DURING 2017-18

LOTS APPROVED FOR 
SUBDIVISION IN 2017-18

ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION 
COSTS OF BUILDINGS 
CONSTRUCTED WITHIN THE 
REGION FOR THE 2017-18 
FINANCIAL YEAR

ATTENDEES AT 806 
EVENTS HOSTED/
HELD AT LOCKYER 
VALLEY LIBRARIES

PEOPLE VISITED THE LOCKYER 
VALLEY LIBRARIES DURING 
2017-18 (INCREASE OF 15,000 
FROM 2016-17)

IS THE VALUE OF THE 
HERBICIDE SUBSIDY PROVIDED 
TO LANDHOLDERS TO TREAT 
RESTRICTED MATTER WEED

DOGS WERE 
REGISTERED IN THE 
REGION IN 2017-18

ITEMS WERE LOANED FROM 
LOCKYER VALLEY LIBRARIES 
(INCREASE OF 4970 
COMPARED TO 2016-17)

NEW DWELLINGS 
BUILT IN 2017-18

BUILDING APPLICATIONS 
COMPLETED BY LVRC 
DURING 2017-18

$86m 
DOMESTIC

$36m
COMMERCIAL

IS THE NUMBER OF 
HECTARES OF THE 
LOCKYER VALLEY 
WITHIN THE LAND FOR 
WILDLIFE PROGRAM

16,425ha
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33,015
WAS THE NUMBER OF CALLS 
RECEIVED IN CALL CENTRE 
DURING 2017-18

394
IS THE NUMBER OF 
CUSTOMER REQUESTS 
MADE ONLINE

IS THE NUMBER OF CUSTOMER 
REQUESTS RAISED DURING 2017-18

14,453

OF ROAD MAINTAINED 
THROUGHOUT THE REGION

OF PARKS, GARDENS, 
RESERVES AND 
PROPERTIES WERE MOWED 
AND MAINTAINED

1,500km

187ha

DELIVERING CAPITAL WORKS 
PROJECTS ON ROADS, 
DRAINAGE AND BRIDGE 
INFRASTRUCTURE, COUNCIL 
BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES, 
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, 
WASTE MANAGEMENT, 
PARKS AND IT SYSTEMS

$17.66m
KERBSIDE RESIDENTIAL 
PROPERTIES SERVICED 
AND 604 KERBSIDE 
COMMERCIAL 
PROPERTIES SERVICED

14,915

OPERATING SURPLUS 
ACHIEVED, AND BACK 
TO BACK SURPLUS WITH 
PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR

$3.18m

797
TYRES

OF WASTE CONCRETE WAS DIVERTED 
FROM LANDFILL, THIS MATERIAL WAS 
CRUSHED FOR OPERATIONAL USE ON 
ROADS AND DRAINAGE. THE SUCCESSFUL 
CRUSHING PROGRAM PROVIDED 2104 
TONNES OF ROAD BASE AND 397 TONNES 
OF RUBBLE FOR DRAINAGE MATERIAL.

2501 
TONNES

AGRICULTURE TRICKLE TAP

100.84 
TONNES

ELECTRONIC WASTE

43.8 
TONNES

LANDFILL WASTE DIVERTED 
TO RECYCLING:
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OUR COUNCILLORS AND THEIR PORTFOLIOS
Lockyer Valley Regional Council, comprising the 
Mayor and six Councillors, is the elected body 
responsible for the good governance of Lockyer 
Valley Regional Council. Councillors have a legal 
obligation requiring members to represent the current 
and future interests of Lockyer Valley residents. 
They are democratically elected and accountable to 
their communities for the decisions they make and 
the services they provide. Their role also includes 
other responsibilities such as providing high quality 
leadership to the community, participating in Council 
meetings; developing policy and making decisions 

that are in the interests of the whole community.

The Mayor and Councillors are bound by a Code of 
Conduct, which is their public commitment to open, 
accountable and ethical standards of behaviour. The 
community also plays an important role in contributing 
to good democratic governance by participating 
in Council elections, being actively involved in 
community engagement programs and providing 
feedback on current issues and the services provided. 

Each Councillor was responsible for a portfolio which 
aligned with their interests and strengths.

Councillor Jason Cook  
(Deputy Mayor) 
Sport and Recreation, 
Community Facilities; 
Health and Waste 
Management; Animal 
Management

Councillor Chris Wilson 
Business Systems and 
Processes; Corporate 
Plans and Performance; 
Finance; Information, 
Communication and 
Technology

Councillor  
Janice Holstein 
Roads and Drainage; 
Parks and Gardens; 
Transport and Active 
Transport; Asset 
Management; Disaster 
Management

Councillor  
Kathy McLean 
Planning and Building 
Services; Planning 
Scheme; Townships 
and Villages, Cultural 
Heritage and 
Streetscape; Regional 
Planning

Councillor Jim McDonald/Councillor Rick Vela  
Environmental Management; Weed/Pest Management; 
Waterways; Natural Resource Management

Councillor 
Michael Hagan 
Arts and Culture; 
Youth and Disability/
Multicultural; Public 
Safety; Customer 
Service; Community 
Services
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MAYOR  
EXECUTIVE SUPPORT  
COUNCIL SUPPORT

INFRASTRUCTURE 
WORKS & SERVICES 

Responsible Officer:  
Mr Myles Fairbairn 

Acting Responsible Officer:  
Ms Seren McKenzie

• Asset Management
• Roads & Drainage
• Parks & Open Spaces
• Capital Works
• Technical Design & Survey
• Fleet, Plant & Depots
• �Works Planning & 

Programming

• Inter Government Relations
• Corporate Governance
• Corporate Communications
• Events Coordination
• Major Projects
• Regional Collaboration
• Legal Services
• Council Meetings Support
• Elected Members Support
• �Visitor Information Centre 

& Queensland Transport 
Museum

• Tourism & Marketing
• �Community Engagement  

& Development
• Youth & Multicultural
• Regional Development
• �Corporate Policy 

Development
• Internal Audit
• Risk Management

• Information Technology
• Information Management
• GIS
• Finance, Rates & Payroll
• Procurement & Stores
• �Customer Service and 

QGAP
• Childcare
• Environmental Health
• �Local Laws & Animal 

Control
• �Libraries, Arts and Cultural 

Services
• Waste Management
• Corporate Software
• �Facilities Management  

& Maintenance
• Disaster Management

• Land Use Compliance
• Building & Plumbing
• �Development Engineering  

& Assessment
• Strategic Planning
• Environment
• Sport & Recreation
• Human Resource Services
• �Work Health & Safety /

Rehabilitation
• Learning & Development
• Workforce Planning
• �Organisational 

Development
• Employee Relations
• Staging Post & Functions

EXECUTIVE 
OFFICE / CEO 

Responsible Officer:  
Mr Ian Church

CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY 

SERVICES 
Responsible Officer:  

Mr David Lewis

ORGANISATIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT & 

PLANNING SERVICES 
Responsible Officer:  
Mr Dan McPherson

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER 

Mr Ian Church

Dan McPherson 
Executive Manager 
Organisational 
Development and 
Planning Services

David Lewis 
Executive Manager 
Corporate and 
Community Services

Myles Fairbairn 
Executive Manager 
Infrastructure Works 
and Services

Seren McKenzie 
Acting Executive 
Manager Infrastructure 
Works and Services

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

 EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM 
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OUR EMPLOYEES
EMPLOYEE SATISFACTION

In February 2017, all Council employees were provided 
with the opportunity to participate in an employee 
opinion survey. This survey obtained information 
from the employees around leadership interactions 
with staff, communication and decision making within 
Council, work conditions, sense of belonging, job 
satisfaction and cross council interactions. The survey 
was well supported by staff and provided valuable 
feedback to improve processes across Council.

The first phase of the strategy for improvement in 
response to the outcomes of the survey is defined in 
the following themes:

• Aligning our effort across Council

• �Developing and promoting our service standards  
and enhancing our levels of service

• �Using leadership roles to help everyone  
succeed at work

• �Using effective communication within Council  
and with our stakeholders.

During 2017-18, the following key initiatives were put  
in place to address the abovementioned themes:

CONNECTED COUNCIL  
PROGRESS GROUP

The Connected Council Progress Group (Whole of 
Council Issues) was formed to respond to issues 
identified in the 2017 employee opinion survey. The 
group comprises of members from all Groups of 
Council to ensure an equitable representation. Each 
member of the Progress Group has been assigned a 
‘patch’ of employees within the organisation to liaise 
with. One of the members’ most important jobs is 
to share information with staff, listen to what they 
have to say, and feed their views back to the Progress 
Group. The work of the Progress Group has been 
moving quickly with a number of initiatives already 
actioned to improve communication across Council.

LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

The Program’s goals are to promote improved 
leadership practices to all levels of leaders across 
the Council in the pursuit of boosting leadership 
capability, enhancing employee engagement and to 
support our leaders and teams to better deliver the 
positive outcomes and services to our community.

SAFETY AND WELLBEING

Council’s Safety Management Plan guides Council’s 
development as we strive to embed health and safety 
as everyone’s responsibility and as a priority in all 
that we do. A main objective of the current Safety 
Management Plan has been to recognise Council’s 
responsibilities for the contractors engaged by 
Council. As Council engages contractors from a wide 
range of industries, contractor safety management 
has been a key focus to ensure safety standards and 
expectations are being achieved. 

Council safety performance and safety systems 
are externally audited, with audit results reflecting 
continuous improvement. Senior council staff 
continue to demonstrate safety leadership through 
the completion of Monthly Action Plans (MAPs), 
which drive Council’s goal to achieve a workplace 
free from injury. Council continue to conduct 
regular inspections to identify potential hazards and 
implement controls to ensure the safety of workers, 
volunteers, and visitors to Council facilities.

As a significant amount of the operational work 
Council performs involves plant and fleet, Council’s 
Safety Team have partnered with other business 
units to prepare for the changing implications of the 
National Heavy Vehicle Legislation and associated 
“Chain of Responsibility”. This preparedness will 
ensure operators of Council fleet are able to do 
so safely and council vehicles are maintained and 
operated in a manner which meets all national road 
safety requirements. 

Council’s safety data management system allows 
accurate reporting of incidents and hazards, near miss 
incidents, identifying emerging safety issues and 
incident trends.

Council’s Wellbeing Committee continues to promote a 
healthy workplace supporting employee’s engagement 
in initiatives such as yoga, fun runs, healthy snack 
options, flu vaccination programs and continuing 
awareness of the importance of maintaining sound 
mental health and general wellbeing. The Wellbeing 
Committee coordinated and promoted a skin check 
initiative where 124 skin checks were performed 
resulting in 54 suspect or changing skin biopsies 
performed with more than 15 melanomas detected.
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EMPLOYEES AT A GLANCE
The following table identifies the number of staff employed by Council at 30 June 2018 
excluding vacant positions. The total approved employee organisational structure is 
329.00 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) positions.

EMPLOYMENT TYPE FTE NUMBERS AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

Permanent 248.05

Fixed Term 30.57

Contract 23.00

Casual (based on hours worked) 20.97

TOTAL 322.58

EMPLOYEE TYPE NUMBER

Full Time 280.00

Part Time 21.61

Casual 20.97

TOTAL 322.58

GENDER BALANCE FEMALE MALE

Executive/senior management group 0.16 3.84

Elected representatives 3 4

TOTAL EMPLOYEES 133.65 188.93

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM
The total remuneration packages for senior executives includes base salary, vehicle 
allowance and superannuation for 2017-18 was $1,020,264.00.

REMUNERATION RANGE NUMBER OF EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM PAID

$100,000 - $200,000 0

$200,000 - $300,000 4
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COMMUNITY 
FINANCIAL 
REPORT 

WHAT IS A COMMUNITY 
FINANCIAL REPORT?
The Community Financial Report is a simplified 
version of Council’s official Financial Statements  
(page 40).

As Financial Statements are often difficult for 
people, other than accountants, to understand, the 
Community Financial report simplifies the Statements 
so that everyone can get a better understanding of 
Council’s financial position.

Each report in Council’s Financial Statements provides 
information on a specific aspect of our performance 
and collectively provides a detailed profile on the 
financial performance and health of Council.

Council’s Financial Statements consist of the 
following five key elements:

The Statement of Comprehensive Income measures 
how Council performed in relation to income and 
expenses during the financial year. This statement 
illustrates how money received from Council 
operations is spent. 

The Statement of Financial Position measures what we 
own (our assets) and what we owe (our liabilities) and 
our net worth (equity) at the end of the financial year.

The Statement of Changes in Equity measures the 
changes in our net wealth and shows the movements 
in our retained earnings, reserves and asset 
revaluation surplus. 

The Statement of Cash Flows outlines how much 
cash was received and spent throughout the year 
and whether or not Council is spending more than it 
is receiving. The closing balance reflects how much 
cash Council had at year end.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide a more 
detailed breakdown of the information contained in 
the individual statements.
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SUMMARY OF KEY RESULTS 
During the 2017-18 financial year, Lockyer Valley Regional Council continued to deliver its program of services to 
the community while building a base for improved financial sustainability. Following on from the success of the 
2016-17 financial year, the results for the current year once again include the achievement of an operating surplus, 
completion of a significant capital works program, and an additional repayment on Council’s debt. 

These results can be highlighted through the following:

• �Achievement of an operating surplus for the second 
consecutive year.

• �Continued increases in fees and charges revenue 
driven through higher levels of both domestic and 
commercial development.

• Significant operational expenditures:

	 – �$20.26 million on roads, drains, bridges,  
and associated transport infrastructure.

	 – �$11.18 million on community facilities, 
libraries and parks.

	 – �$6.75 million on health, waste and 
regulatory services.

• �Completion of $17.66 million in capital works 
including $11.57 million on roads,  
drains and bridge infrastructure, $2.26 million on 
plant and other equipment, $1.33 million on parks 
and other facilities, with the remainder spent on 
waste management and IT systems. 

• �An additional loan repayment of $5.00 million to 
reduce Council’s debt levels and save on long term 
interest costs.

• �Maintenance of adequate cash balances to provide 
flexibility in the future.

CASH FLOWS 2018 FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY RATIOS

2018 OPERATING RESULT

2018 FINANCIAL POSITION

Operating 
Surplus

Financial 
Liabilities

Asset 
Sustainability

5.20% 52.94% 97.53%

Target 0 - 10% Target < 60% Target > 90%

OPERATING 
REVENUE 
$61.21M

OPERATING 
EXPENSES 
$58.03M

OPERATING 
SURPLUS 
$3.18M=

=

–

–

Net Cash Inflow from Operations

Net Cash Outflow for Capital

Net Cash Outflow for Debt payments

Cash at end of Year

$15.49M

($8.37M)

($6.12M)

$25.94M

ASSETS 
$663.35M

LIABILITIES
$66.95M

EQUITY 
$596.40M
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
The Statement of Comprehensive Income measures how Council performed in relation to income and expenses 
during the financial year. This statement illustrates how money received from Council operations is spent. 

COMPARATIVE TREND ANALYSIS 

$140M

$120M

$100M

$80M

$60M

$40M

$20M

–

($20m)

($40M)
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

 Operating Surplus/Deficit ($16.89M) ($7.55M) ($9.75M) ($9.32M) ($2.74M) $5.30M $3.18M

 Operating Revenue $98.41M $97.04M $83.41M $62.21M $55.12M $60.26M $61.21M

 Operating Expenditure $115.29M $104.59M $93.16M $71.53M $57.87M $54.97M $58.03M

ROASTED
& SALTED

FLAVOUR

PISTACHIOS

ROASTED
& SALTED

FLAVOUR

PISTACHIOS

RATES
$38.30M

GRANTS
$7.36M

FEES & 
CHARGES
$6.44M

OTHER
REVENUE
$7.33M

INTEREST
$1.78M

EMPLOYEE COSTS
$24.28M

MATERIALS 
& SERVICES
$18.24M

DEPRECIATION
$12.88M

FINANCE COSTS
$2.63M

2018 OPERATING REVENUE 2018 OPERATING EXPENSES

TOTAL  
$61.21M

TOTAL  
$58.03M

For the 2017-18 financial year, Council had budgeted for an operating surplus of $1.60 million, and careful 
monitoring of expenditures during the year combined with additional planning and development fees has 
delivered a higher than expected surplus of $3.18 million. 

The achievement of the second operating surplus in a row indicates that the long-term sustainability of the organisation 
is continuing to improve. It shows that Council’s commitment to operating within its means is being followed through, 
providing flexibility for its future operations and an improved ability to withstand unexpected financial shocks.
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REVENUE SOURCES  
– WHERE DOES THE MONEY COME FROM?

REVENUE

For the 2017-18 financial year, Council received  
$61.21 million in operating revenue and $11.73 million 
in capital revenue. 

While revenue from rates and charges is the main 
source of income, fees and charges revenues continue 
to exceed budgeted expectations. This has mainly 
been driven by the development within the region, and 
improvements in the level of user fees and charges, 
including animal registrations. The investment in 
Queensland Urban Utilities (QUU) continues to 
provide strong returns with Council’s share of profit 

supplemented by interest on the shareholder loan and 
payments for income tax equivalents required under 
National Competition Policy. 

Capital revenues include grants and subsidies 
from the State and Federal Governments for the 
construction of assets as well as the value of 
assets contributed to Council from developers in 
the form of road works, stormwater drainage, and 
park equipment. For 2017-18 the contributed assets 
totaled $6.22 million.
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RATES, LEVIES 
& CHARGES

$38.30M2018 ACTUAL

FEES & 
CHARGES

$6.44M

INTEREST & 
INVESTMENT 

REVENUE
 

$4.11M

OTHER 
INCOME

 
$5.01M

GRANTS & 
CONTRIBUTIONS

- OPERATING

$7.36M

 GRANTS & 
CONTRIBUTIONS

 - CAPITAL

$11.73M
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EXPENDITURE  
– WHERE DOES THE MONEY GO?
Council incurs both operating and capital expenditure 
in the provision of services to our local community. In 
addition to the operating expenses of $58.03 million, 
there was an additional $3.90 million capital costs 
incurred through the disposal of various assets which are 
no longer in service. 

During the 2017-18 financial year, total operational 
expenditure increased by $3.06 million or 5.57 per cent 
on the prior year. Employee costs have increased as a 
result of planned increases in staffing levels in key areas 
such as Planning, Local Laws, and Plumbing and Building 
Regulation to improve service delivery. Materials and 
services have increased due to one-off election costs, 

business assistance waivers, expert consultants in 
relation to the Toowoomba Second Range Crossing and 
flood mitigation studies, and increased maintenance on 
roads and facilities. 

Depreciation continues to be a significant cost and  
is constantly under review through the asset  
revaluation process. 

The largest category of Council’s operational expenditure 
is on roads, drains, and bridges which accounts for 
thirty-three per cent of the total expenditure. A further 
eighteen percent is spent on maintaining community 
facilities, buildings, parks and libraries. 

REGIONAL
ADMIN

$12.96M2018 ACTUAL

HEALTH, 
WASTE & 

REGULATORY

$6.75M

COMMUNITY 
& REGIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT

 
$6.25M

PLANNING & 
ENVIRONMENT

 
$2.60M

BUILDING &
PLUMBING

REGULATION

 
$1.03M

COMMUNITY
FACILITIES,
LIBRARIES, 

PARKS

$11.18M

ROADS
DRAINS & 
BRIDGES

$20.26M

DISASTER
MANAGEMENT

$0.89M
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
The Statement of Financial Position measures what we own (our assets) and what we owe (our debts) and our net 
worth at the end of the financial year.

ASSETS – WHAT WE OWN

Council’s total cash and investments decreased by 
$1.30 million with reduced operating and capital cash 
outflows offsetting the additional loan repayment made 
in June 2018. Council’s cash balance at the end of 2018 
was $25.94 million (2017 $27.24 million). Other current 
assets have increased through a higher level of rates 
debtors due to transfers of charges against the land and 
the timing of the contract recoverable works.

Non-current assets have remained on par with the 
previous year with asset additions offsetting the 
decrease in value resulting of the revaluation of 
Council’s buildings. This revaluation is in accordance 
with the Facilities Service Management Plan which has 
identified that certain buildings are reaching the end of 
their useful life and therefore will not be replaced; this 
means that they have no replacement value. The value 

of infrastructure assets has also decreased in line with 
their condition assessments and normal wear and tear. 

Assets relating to Council’s Waste Management 
function were reviewed and valued at fair value for the 
first time requiring them to be transferred from Other 
Assets to their own asset category. These assets include 
transfer station infrastructure such as weighbridges, 
bins, internal roadworks, retaining walls, and fencing.

For the 2017-18 financial year, Council completed $17.66 
million in capital works with a further $6.22 million in 
developer contributed assets. Works in progress at 
year end totaled $5.96 million. The level of completed 
works was around 88% of the budgeted amount and 
was mostly renewal works in accordance with Council’s 
Service Management Plans.

CASH & EQUIVALENTS
$25.94M

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
$576.73M

INVESTMENT IN QUU
$30.27M

LOAN TO QUU
$14.74M

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
$5.21M

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
$1.85M

TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES
$5.75M

HELD FOR SALE ASSETS
$2.49M

INVENTORY
$0.37M

CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL  
$34.55M

TOTAL  
$628.80M
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LIABILITIES – WHAT WE OWE
During the 2017-18 financial year, our liabilities decreased by a net amount of $4.91 million 
or 6.84 per cent mainly due to an additional loan repayment and adjustments to Council’s 
provisions. Trade and other payables and provisions have remained relatively stable 
compared to the previous year with a small increase in payables due to the timing of a 
large one-off payment.

LIABILITIES – WHAT WE OWE

Council’s largest liability is now the provisions for the rehabilitation of land fill and 
quarry sites across the region in accordance with environmental requirements.  
These provisions are generated to recognise the estimated future costs of restoring  
and maintaining Council’s quarries and landfills throughout the region and are  
reviewed and adjusted annually. 

BORROWINGS
$1.39M

TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES
$6.72M

PROVISIONS
$4.94M

PROVISIONS
$28.97M

BORROWINGS
$29.94M

CURRENT  
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT  
LIABILITIES

TOTAL  
$53.91M

TOTAL  
$13.04M
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OUR DEBT 
Like most other Local Governments throughout 
Australia, Lockyer Valley Regional Council  
utilises loan borrowing to fund the construction 
of new infrastructure to service the needs of our 
growing community.

Council’s debt policy is based on sound financial 
management practices with borrowings restricted  
as follows:

• �Council will not utilise loan funds to finance 
operational activities 

• �Council will endeavour to fund all capital renewal 
works from operating cash flows and borrow only 
for new or upgrade projects.

During 2017-18 Council did not borrow any new funds 
and made repayments of $6.12 million which included 
a one-off additional payment of $5.00 million. 

At 30 June 2018 the amount of debt was 4.50 per cent 
of Council’s total assets.

STATEMENT OF  
CHANGES IN EQUITY 
The Statement of Changes in Equity measures the 
changes in our net wealth and shows the movements 
in our retained earnings, reserves and asset 
revaluation surplus. 

In the 2017-18 financial year, our net worth increased 
by $5.22 million or 0.88 per cent with the main 
contributors being decreases of $5.79 million in our 
asset revaluation surplus, being offset by the net result 
for the year of $11.01 million. The decrease in the asset 
revaluation surplus is due to the revaluation of various 
assets identified in the above section on Assets. 

At the end of the year Council’s equity balance is 
$596.40 million.
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STATEMENT OF  
CASH FLOWS 
This statement outlines how we received and spent 
cash throughout the year. The closing balance reflects 
how much cash Council had at year end.

Council generated a net amount of $15.49 million from 
its operating activities which relates to payments 
received from customers, investment revenues 
including interest, and non-capital grants and 
contributions, less the payments to employees and 
suppliers, and interest on Council’s loans. 

In conjunction with the proceeds of the disposal 
of assets, capital grants, and other investment 
distributions, the cash generated from operating 
activities was used in the purchase of assets such 
as property, plant and equipment, and principal 
repayments off Council’s debt. 

At 30 June 2018, Council’s total cash balance was 
$25.94 million which, taking in to account Council’s 
cash investments was a net decrease in cash of  
$1.30 million during the 2017-18 financial year. 

COMPARATIVE CASH BALANCES
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FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY RATIOS
Section 178(1) of the Local Government Regulation 2012, requires Council to calculate and disclose financial 
sustainability indicators. The ratios and targets are sourced from the Financial Management (Sustainability) 
Guideline issued by the Department of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs.

Council’s performance as at 30 June 2018 against these measures is shown in the following table.

RATIO EXPLANATION CALCULATION TARGET 2018
TARGET 

MET
COMMENT

Operating 
surplus ratio

Measures 
the extent to 
which revenues 
raised cover 
operational 
expenses 
only or are 
available for 
capital funding 
purposes or 
other purposes.

Operating 
Surplus 
(Net result 
excluding 
all capital 
items) 
divided 
by total 
operating 
revenue 
(excluding 
capital 
items).

Between 
0% and 

10%

5.20% ✓ This ratio is within 
the target range as 
operating revenues have 
exceeded operating 
expenditures. Higher 
than expected planning 
and development fees, 
and lower than expected 
expenditures on wages 
and salaries have 
contributed to the result.

Asset 
sustainability 
ratio

This ratio 
reflects the 
extent to which 
infrastructure 
assets managed 
by Council are 
being replaced 
as they reach 
the end of their 
useful lives.

Capital 
expenditure 
on the 
replacement 
of assets 
(renewals) 
divided by 
depreciation 
expense.

>90% 97.53% ✓ This ratio is over the 
target amount due to a 
focus on renewal capital 
works and Council’s 
commitment to the Asset 
Service Management 
Plans.

Net financial 
liabilities 
ratio

Measures the 
extent to which 
net financial 
liabilities of 
Council can be 
repaid from 
operating 
revenue.

Total 
liabilities 
less current 
assets 
divided 
by total 
operating 
revenue.

< 60% 52.94% ✓ This ratio has remained 
within the target range 
due to an increase in 
revenues from planning 
and development fees, 
and other income 
sources. Cash generated 
through operations has 
maintained Council’s 
bank balance while 
liabilities have been 
reduced through the 
repayment of debt.

The long term financial forecast shows surpluses for upcoming ten years as well as significant improvements in 
the net financial liabilities ratio. The forecast for the Asset Sustainability Ratio are derived from the adopted Service 
Management Plans for each asset class. While the forecast shows that there will be years when the ratio is lower 
than the target level, the average ratio over the life of the forecast meets the threshold set by the Department. 

CONCLUSION
The results for the 2017-18 financial year show that Council has continued to deliver on its promise to  
achieve operating surpluses and further improve its financial position. The high level of completed capital 
works and a clear focus on renewing existing assets is further evidence of Council’s determination to  
achieve a financially sustainable future. 
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DELIVERING THE OPERATIONAL 
PLAN 2017-18

LOCKYER COMMUNITY

Our healthy community welcomes the spirited diversity found within our region. Times of 
hardship highlight our resilience. Our high standards support our quality of life and vibrancy 
while providing a dynamic and safe place full of opportunity. We strive to build on who we are 
and all that our region has to offer by connecting business, the community and government.

CORPORATE PLAN 2017-2022 OUTCOMES 2017-18 PERFORMANCE 

1.1 �A community with fair and reasonable  
access to services

• Provided child care facilities in the region

• �A new Community Directory was developed for the 
community to access online information on health and 
other community services available in the region. 274 locally 
based services are currently advertised in the Directory

• �One grant writing workshop was conducted for the 
community to increase skills in grant writing and 
governance practices

1.2 �Council optimises the use of its open spaces and 
facilities by improving access to and the quality of 
the facilities for individuals and groups for cultural, 
recreational and community activities

• �Commenced a review of Council’s Public Parks Strategy 
enabling development of an investment plan for the 
regions parks and gardens

• �Determined levels of service for the provision of 
mowing, slashing and maintenance of the region’s parks.

• �Implemented 80% of the recommendations identified 
in the Council Library Services Review to provide more 
sustainable services to the region

• �Implemented self-service hardware in the Libraries 
enabling visitors to check in and out borrowing 
independently

• �Conducted activities and events for all ages at the 
region’s Libraries

1.3 Enhanced wellbeing and safety of the community • �Upgraded Council’s waterRIDE software program 
(used to manage Council’s floodplains) with additional 
functionality

• Installed a flood camera in Laidley 

• �Installed the Thornton rain/river/flood camera which 
was commissioned by the Bureau of Meteorology

• �Annual food establishment inspection program was 
completed and all annual food licences renewed with 10 
new food establishment licences issued

• �Annual dog survey was conducted with an increase in 
the overall number of dogs registered in the region and a 
decrease in infringements issued as a result of program. 

• Participation in school-based AVA Petpep programs 

• �403 plumbing applications and 179 building applications 
were completed during the year

• �Compliance work was conducted on swimming pools 
within the region
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CORPORATE PLAN 2017-2022 OUTCOMES 2017-18 PERFORMANCE 

1.4 �Council seeks to understand community needs, 
resulting in partnerships that realise long-term benefits 
for the community in a timely manner.

• �Masterplans developed for Springbrook Park, Ropehill 
Sports Ground and Laidley Recreation Reserve

• �Two rounds of funding provided $79,927.63 in grants for 
community groups

• �School holiday programs conducted in conjunction 
with the regions schools and Anglicare for local youth 
included scooter workshops, high ropes course and 
movie nights throughout the region

• A masterplan was developed for the region’s skate parks

1.5 �Events and activities that bring together and support 
greater connectivity in the community

• �Council conducted and assisted with 57 events in the 
Region included Gatton CBD Mural Launch and Artist 
Tour, the Queens Baton Relay Community Event, Laidley 
Spring Festival, Australia Day and Seniors Week Festivities

• �Successful delivery of NAIDOC week celebrations and 
Multicultural Festival in partnership with the community

1.6 �The community’s preparedness for disasters  
is improved through community education,  
training and strong partnerships between Council  
and other agencies

• �Council participated in multi-agency disaster  
exercise conducted in Gatton, hosted by the 
Queensland Police Service

• �Community engagement activities were conducted 
throughout the region in relation to disaster preparedness

• �Engagement activity conducted with Laidley businesses 
to provide input into the Business Resilience project.

• �Annual training of Local Disaster Coordination  
Centre staff and Local Disaster Management Group 
members conducted
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LOCKYER BUSINESS FARMING AND LIVELIHOOD

Lockyer Business: Our business community is a thriving and inclusive network where it 
is easy to do business. We create opportunities and encourage innovation that inspires 
business confidence and collaborative partnerships.

Lockyer Farming: As custodians we manage our water and land assets to ensure our 
farming future. We pride ourselves on our innovation and clean, green reputation. We work 
together to support our farmers of current and future generations.

Lockyer Livelihood: We are a community where lifelong learning opportunities exist. Our 
quality education facilities are highly regarded and provide diverse career pathways. We 
look to develop skills and generate job opportunities for all.

CORPORATE PLAN 2017-2022 OUTCOMES 2017-18 PERFORMANCE 

2.1 �Encourage opportunities for the Lockyer Valley to drive 
economic and community outcomes

• �Information and guidance on economic development in 
the region was provided to 138 individuals, businesses 
and developers

• �A water collaborative steering group was formed to 
advocate for improved water security for the region

• �A technical working group was formed to advocate for 
the region’s interest in respect to the Inland Rail Project

2.2 �Maximise opportunities through engagement and 
partnership with stakeholders to achieve a strong 
resilient economy

• �Council hosted and participated in forums, meetings 
and networking opportunities with the region’s 
business and industry groups including Lockyer 
Growers Group, Lockyer Chamber of Commerce and 
Lockyer Valley Tourism

2.3 �Promote and market the Lockyer Valley as a 
destination for commerce, tourism and lifestyle

• �The region was marketed as a destination through 
active displays at Regional Flavours and the Brisbane 
Exhibition events

• �A new tourism destination guide was developed  
and distributed

• �The Lockyer Valley was marketed on the SEQ Food  
Trail website hosted by Council of Mayors (South  
East Queensland)

2.4 �Attract and support education and employment 
opportunities for the community

• �Council co-facilitated nine Bringing Employers Students 
Together (BEST) meetings

• �Opportunities were provided for students to  
undertake work experience with Council through  
the GenR8 Program

2.5 �Foster a flexible, supportive and inclusive business 
environment

• �75% occupancy of the Laidley Business Incubator was 
maintained in 2017-18
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LOCKYER NATURE

Our natural assets are valued and protected to sustain our unique rural lifestyle.

CORPORATE PLAN 2017-2022 OUTCOMES 2017-18 PERFORMANCE 

3.1 �Lockyer Valley’s natural assets are managed, 
maintained and protected

• �Council commenced implementing initiatives of the 
Lockyer Catchment Action Plan including identifying 
strategic revegetation options for the Lockyer Creek 
and improving the community resilience in the Tenthill 
Creek Catchment

• �Council commenced development of the Natural 
Resource Management Plan, Biosecurity Plan and the 
Flying Fox Roost Management Plan 

3.2 �Council’s policies and plans support environmentally 
sustainable development

• �The Lockyer Valley Planning Scheme development 
commenced including an environmental overlay that 
which provides a mechanism for the protection of 
vegetation across the region

3.3 �Community and private landholders’ stewardship of 
natural assets increases

• �Initiatives of the Land for Wildlife program were delivered 
including visits to current properties and new properties 
signed up for the program. Workshops and other 
information sessions were conducted with landholders.

• �Council successfully delivered the environment and 
pest programs throughout the region

3.4 Locals and visitors experience our natural assets • �Scoping work commenced on the development of an 
eco- tourism promotional video for the region.

3.5 �Council and the community actively reduce waste, 
recycle and reuse more

• �Waste and recycling services were delivered throughout 
the region

• �A review of the region’s Waste Reduction and Recycling 
Plan commenced

• �95% of the waste management capital works program 
was completed

3.6 �Council and the community actively reduce 
consumption of non-renewable resources

• �Outcomes of the energy audits conducted on Council’s 
major facilities commenced including the installation of 
sub metering and monitoring devices and the installation 
of solar panels to the Lockyer Valley Cultural Centre
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LOCKYER PLANNED

We have unique, well connected communities. We have places and spaces that bring 
together people. Local services match the needs of the community. Our built infrastructure 
is designed and constructed to enable access for all.

CORPORATE PLAN 2017-2022 OUTCOMES 2017-18 PERFORMANCE 

4.1 �Growth and development in the region is sustainably 
managed through the adoption and implementation of 
the Lockyer Valley Planning Scheme

• �Drafting of the Lockyer Valley Planning  
Scheme commenced

4.2 �Provision of fit-for-purpose infrastructure which meets 
the current and future needs of the region

• �The service management plan for Council’s cemeteries 
was adopted by Council

• �The service management plan for parks and gardens  
was implemented

• �The service management plans for plant and fleet  
and roads and drainage were reviewed and adopted  
by Council

• �Council’s road maintenance program was delivered 
within the allocated budget

• �More than 90% of the identified roads and drainage 
capital works program was delivered within the  
allocated budget

• �100% of the externally funded TIDS program was completed

• �Stormwater catchment modelling, planning and design 
for Gatton sub-catchments was completed

• �The Lockyer Valley Local Government Infrastructure Plan 
was developed and adopted by Council

4.3 �A development assessment process that delivers quality 
development that is consistent with legislation, best 
practice and community expectations

• �Improvements were made to the assessment timeframes 
and customer engagement of development applications 
received to Council

• �All development applications received were assessed 
within statutory timeframes

• �Initiatives of the development assessment improvement 
plan were achieved

4.4 �Regional collaboration and targeted advocacy that drives 
external funding, for timely delivery of key infrastructure 
and enhanced community outcomes

• �Advocacy work was undertaken to minimise the 
construction impacts of the Toowoomba Second  
Range Crossing

4.5 �An integrated approach to the planning of all 
communities that strengthens local identity and lifestyle

• �Funding was received for new CCTV to be installed in 
Laidley CBD at Das Neumann Haus

• �New bollards were installed at Laidley Recreation 
Reserve to improve pedestrian access to the Reserve
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LOCKYER LEADERSHIP AND COUNCIL

Lockyer Leadership: Our leaders are visionary and seek coordinated outcomes for the 
benefit of the whole community.

Lockyer Council: A well-managed, transparent and accountable organisation that gives the 
community confidence, demonstrates financial sustainability, where customers are satisfied 
with our services and our employees are proud to work.

CORPORATE PLAN 2017-2022 OUTCOMES 2017-18 PERFORMANCE 

5.1 �Undertake robust and accountable financial, resource 
and infrastructure planning and management to ensure 
affordable and sustainable outcomes for our community

• �A review was conducted into Council’s funding and cash 
management processes in consultation with Queensland 
Treasury Corporation

• �An additional repayment of $5 million on Council’s  
debt was made in June 2018 and a review of Council’s 
Debt Policy allows for further repayments if the 
opportunity is available

• �Monthly reporting was provided to Council on its 
financial position

• �Reviews of business operations were conducted into 
Council’s child care centres, Staging Post Café and Lake 
Dyer Camping and Caravan Ground

• �Inspections were conducted on Council’s roads, drainage, 
parks, gardens and cemetery assets to identify defects

• �All plant and fleet items schedule for replacement  
were replaced

• �A utilisation review of Council’s plant and fleet commenced

• �The annual financial statements and external audit were 
completed in required timeframes

5.2 Excellence in customer service to our community • �77.02% of calls were responded to at first point of contact

• �Abandoned calls were 3.44 % (target <15%)

• �Key outcomes of the Customer Service Strategy were 
delivered including Voice of the Customer projects

5.3 �Actively engage with the community to inform council 
decision making processes

• �Engagement advice and support in response to  
Council needs was provided through active internal 
engagement with staff responsible for delivering key 
projects in the community

5.4 �Commit to open and accountable governance to ensure 
community confidence and trust in council and our 
democratic values

• �Annual program of meetings including all council 
meetings, tours and workshop conducted

• �Commenced a comprehensive review of all policies, 
procedures and strategies to assess alignment with the 
outcomes of the Corporate Plan 2017–2022 and to assist 
with the development of a policy framework for future 
strategy development

• �A review of Council’s performance reporting framework to 
align with the new Corporate Plan 2017-2022 was conducted 
including the development of a business unit plan template 
and business unit plans for five business units

5.5 �Promote a values based culture that appreciates and 
empowers its workforce

• �The Connected Council working group was established 
to work on common whole of organisation issues and 
address outcomes of the employee opinion survey

• �Commenced development of new enterprise bargaining 
agreements for field and office staff with new agreement 
for field based staff successfully voted up by 91.5% of staff
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CORPORATE PLAN 2017-2022 OUTCOMES 2017-18 PERFORMANCE 

5.6 �Provide leadership and contemporary  
management systems that drive a coordinated  
and connected organisation

• �Quarterly Executive Leadership Team Roadshows 
conducted to engage with staff and advise of key points 
of interest occurring at Council

• �The leadership development program for managers and 
coordinators commenced

• �Matters of strategic significance to Council and the 
community were advocated for through submission of 
motions to the Australian Local Government Association 
and Local Government Association Queensland and 
through other key advocacy channels including Council of 
Mayors (South East Queensland)

5.7 Compliant with relevant legislation • �The annual review of the Local Disaster Management 
Plan was conducted

• �Four Audit and Risk Management Committee Meetings 
were held

• �100% completion of compliance reporting on Work Health 
Safety monthly action plans

• �Amendments made to two sub-ordinate Local Laws 
(Animal Management & Parking)

• �A Local Law and Subordinate Local Law developed and 
adopted for waste management

5.8 Deliver reliable internal support services • �Internal support was provided in the development of 
Council’s service management plans for roads, drainage 
and cemeteries

• �Legal and property services were provided including 
drafting of leases for Council facilities and properties  
and arranged disposal of property that is no longer 
required by Council

• �A review of Council’s land register was conducted prior 
to the development of a service management plan for 
Council’s land

• �Council’s external and internal communication 
requirements were delivered including media releases, 
valley voice updates, advertising, social media posts, 
website updates, staff newsletters and updates

LOCKYER LEADERSHIP AND COUNCIL CONT’D
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STATUTORY 
INFORMATION

BENEFICIAL ENTERPRISES 
Council did not have any partnership arrangements, or conduct any business with 
beneficial enterprises under section 41 of the Local Government Act 2009 during the 
2017-18 financial year. 

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 
Council did not conduct any business activities under section 43 of the Local 
Government Act 2009 during the 2017-18 financial year.

COMPETITIVE NEUTRALITY COMPLAINTS
Council did not receive any competitive neutrality complaints during the  
2017-18 financial year.

PARTICULAR RESOLUTIONS 

RESOLUTIONS MADE DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR UNDER 
SECTION 206(2):

In accordance with section 185(b) of the Local Government Regulation 2012, there 
were no resolutions made by Council during the 2017-18 year under section 206 (2) 
setting the amount for each different type of non-current physical asset below which 
the value of an asset of the same type must be treated as an expense.

RESOLUTIONS MADE DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR UNDER 
SECTION 250(1):

In accordance with section 185(b) of the Local Government Regulation 2012, there 
were no resolutions made by Council during the 2017-18 under section 250 to make 
changes to Council’s Expenses Reimbursement and Provision of Facilities Policy or 
Guideline for Councillors in 2017-18. 
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COUNCILLORS 
ATTENDANCE AT COUNCIL MEETINGS

As required under section 186(d) of the Local Government Regulation 2012, the table below details the number of 
local government meetings each Councillor attended during the financial year ending 30 June 2018.

NAME
ORDINARY MEETINGS  

(21 HELD)
SPECIAL MEETINGS  

(3 HELD)
TOTAL

Cr Tanya Milligan (Mayor) 20 3 23

Cr Jason Cook (Deputy Mayor) 20 2 22

Cr Chris Wilson 21 3 24

Cr Janice Holstein 20 3 23

Cr Jim McDonald 8 1 9

Cr Kathy McLean 20 3 23

Cr Michael Hagan 21 3 24

Cr Rick Vela 8 2 10

COUNCILLOR REMUNERATION 

Increases in remuneration for Councillors are automatically linked to respective increases to the remuneration levels 
of Queensland Members of the Legislative Assembly. The Local Government Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal 
is the independent body established to regularly review and determine the remuneration payable to Councillors.

Mayor: $125,084	 Deputy Mayor: $78,177	 Councillor: $66,450

NAME REMUNERATION ALLOWANCES SUPERANNUATION TOTAL

Cr Tanya Milligan (Mayor) $125,036.75 $4,000.07  $15,004.40 $144,041.22

Cr Jason Cook (Deputy Mayor)  $ 78,147.56 $12,500.01  $ 9,377.78 $100,025.35

Cr Chris Wilson  $ 66,424.96 $12,500.01  $ 7,970.94  $ 86,895.91

Cr Janice Holstein  $ 66,424.96 $12,500.01  $ 7,970.94  $ 86,895.91

Cr Jim McDonald  $ 24,638.12 $4,639.42  $ 2,956.56 $ 32,234.10

Cr Kathy McLean  $ 66,424.96 $12,500.01  $ 7,970.94 $ 86,895.91

Cr Michael Hagan  $ 66.424.96 $12,500.01  $ 7.970.94 $ 86,895.91

Cr Rick Vela  $ 23,367.15 $4,395.63  $ 2,806.00 $ 30,568.78
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COUNCILLOR EXPENSES

NAME
PHONE &  

ICT COSTS
MOTOR  

VEHICLES

TRAINING, 
CONFERENCES & 

FUNCTIONS
TOTAL

Cr Tanya Milligan (Mayor) $1,908.23 $9,570.48 $13,670.99 $25,149.70 

Cr Jason Cook (Deputy Mayor) $978.11 - $680.45 $1,658.56 

Cr Chris Wilson $902.86 - $1,493.18 $2,396.04 

Cr Janice Holstein $1,083.61 - $495.00 $1,578.61 

Cr Jim McDonald $670.78 - $35.00 $705.78 

Cr Kathy McLean $894.53 - $3,819.81 $4,714.34 

Cr Michael Hagan $879.25 - $2,977.25 $3,856.50 

Cr Rick Vela $220.57 - $450.00 $670.57 

EXPENSES REIMBURSEMENT AND PROVISION OF FACILITIES FOR COUNCILLORS

In accordance with section 250 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, Council must have an Expenses 
Reimbursement and Provision of Facilities Policy for Councillors. The objective of the Policy is to ensure the 
payment of legitimate and reasonable expenses incurred by Councillors for discharging their duties and 
responsibilities as Councillors; and to provide facilities to Councillors for those purposes. This is to ensure that 
Councillors are not financially disadvantaged as a result of carrying out their official duties. The Policy is also aimed 
at reflecting the community’s expectations about the extent of a Councillor’s duties and responsibilities and its 
expectations about the resources and reimbursement provided to Councillors from public funds. This Policy does 
not deal with the provision of remuneration. This Policy is available on Council’s website.
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ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION COMPLAINTS
Council is committed to dealing fairly with administrative action complaints by receiving, 
enabling, responding and reviewing customer complaints in a professional and cost 
effective manner. By reviewing, reflecting and learning from the complaints received, 
Council is able to improve services to the community. The majority of administrative 
action complaints received were minor or negligible in nature and all investigations were 
conducted and responses were provided within the identified timeframe. One of the 
key causes for complaints submitted included the customer not being aware of all the 
information in relation to their matter. Further advice was able to be provided as part of 
the outcome of the investigation of their complaint. This outcome enabled improvements 
to be made to Council’s processes and practices.

ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION COMPLAINTS 2017-18  
REPORTABLE ITEMS UNDER SECTION 187 OF THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT REGULATION 2012

REPORTABLE ITEM NUMBER

Number of administrative action complaints received 12

Number of administrative action complaints resolved 10

Number of administrative action complaints sustained (partly) 3

Number of administrative action complaints not sustained 6

Number of complaints still in progress/unresolved at the end of the 
financial year

3

Number of administrative action complaints that were made in the 
previous financial year (2016-2017)

23

RIGHT TO INFORMATION AND 
INFORMATION PRIVACY
The Right to Information Act 2009 and the Information Privacy Act 2009 provide 
the community with access to information balanced by appropriate protection for 
individuals’ privacy. The public can apply for access to documents held by a council, 
subject to statutory exemptions, unless it is contrary to the public interest to provide that 
information. The legislation also allows individuals to apply for amendments to be made 
to documents concerning their personal affairs, where it is believed the information is 
incomplete, out of date, inaccurate or misleading.

Applications received under the Right to Information Act 2009 (RTI) 11

Applications received under the Information Privacy Act 2009 (IP) 1

Total applications received 12

No applications were withdrawn and eleven decisions were issued to applicants, all 
within legislative timeframes. One application remained on hand as at 30 June 2018. 

No applications were subject to an external review by Office of Information Commissioner.
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RECORD OF COUNCILLOR 
CONDUCT AND 
PERFORMANCE COMPLAINTS 
There were no reportable items applicable to the following 
sections of the Local Government Act 2009 or associated 
Regulations, dealing with complaints made concerning the 
misconduct of a Councillor. 

OVERSEAS TRAVEL 
No Councillors or Council employees travelled overseas in 
an official capacity during the 2017-18 financial year.
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GRANTS TO COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS 

The following grants were made to community organisations under Council’s Community 
Grants and Assistance Policy and Procedure.

ORGANISATION NAME PURPOSE AMOUNT  $

Laidley District Cricket Club Practice net expansion 4,000.00 

Hatton Vale State School Parent and Citizens Hatton Vale Community Christmas Concert 2,000.00 

Laidley Walloon Quarter Horse and 
Performance Association

Survey for lease renewal 2,000.00 

Tenthill Baptist Church Digital road sign 3,000.00 

Redeemer Lutheran Church Laidley Dishwasher 3,000.00 

Ropehill and Districts Branch Little  
Athletics Centre Inc.

Linemarker 2,000.00 

Laidley District State School Parents  
and Citizens

Kitchen upgrade 2,000.00 

Lockyer Valley Community Activities Shed Inc. Timber thicknesser and dust extractor 1,500.00 

Gatton and District Historical Society Inc. Table and chairs 2,000.00 

Gatton and Districts Committee on  
the Ageing Inc.

Roofing repairs 2,000.00 

Glenore Grove Public Hall Association Inc. Ride on mower 3,000.00 

Mulgowie Public Hall Association Inc. Retaining wall 1,500.00 

Lockyer Darts Association Fridge/Freezer replacement 2,000.00 

Laidley District Historical Society Inc. PA system with integrated audio 3,000.00 

Laidley Bowls Club Inc. Message board 2,000.00 

Gatton Rugby League Football Club Inc. Player protection 2,000.00 

University of Queensland Gatton Rugby  
Union Club Inc.

Clubhouse 3,000.00 

Hatton Vale Community Uniting Church Children’s playground 3,500.00 

Lake Clarendon Primary School P&C Sound system 3,500.00 

Kentville State School P&C Resources for technology room 3,500.00 

Flagstone Creek State School P&C LED community sign 4,000.00 

Gatton Junior Rugby League Football Club Inc. Toilet block makeover 2,000.00 
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ORGANISATION NAME PURPOSE AMOUNT  $

Standardbred Association Queensland Inc.
SAQ Horse Placement and Adoption Program 
Engagement Strategy

1,700.00 

Lockyer Valley Volunteer Area Committee of 
Crime Stoppers Queensland Limited

Community signage 4,000.00 

Gatton Lapidary Club Inc Local geological information   813.63 

Spirit of the Valley Events Inc. Event equipment 3,742.00 

Laidley Community Centre Inc. 30th Celebration Community Day 2,000.00 

Uniting Church of Australia Laidley
Uniting Church of Australia Laidley 
– Recipe Book

1,290.00 

Laidley Garden Club Laidley Garden Club - equipment 3,000.00 

Junction View Hall Upgrade to facilities 4,000.00 

Lockyer Valley Arts Society Inc. Workshop materials   502.00 

Mt Sylvia State School P&C Up the Creek Festival 2,380.00 

TOTAL $79,927.63

Assistance was also provided under the following categories:

• Regional Ambassador Support and School Dux Bursary Program - $6,850.00

• School Chaplaincy Program - $10,000.00

• Public Halls Assistance Program - $20,400.00

• Anzac Day Remembrance Program - $6,600.00

• Sporting Grounds Assistance Program - $140,637.40

• 83 community organisations were granted fee waivers for the use of Council’s facilities at a total cost of $160,531.32
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COUNCILLOR DISCRETIONARY FUNDS

The following donations were made from the Mayoral Donation Program:

ORGANISATION NAME PURPOSE AMOUNT  $

Queensland Justices Association Sponsorship 2017 QJA Conference 200.00 

Lights on The Hill
Banner for Lockyer Valley Regional  
Council convoy

149.00 

Laidley District State School Legends of Term 2 Medallions 178.50 

Lockyer Equestrian Group Sponsorship 2017 Dressage Championships 500.00 

Lockyer Antique Motor Association Sponsorship 2017 Tractor Trek 300.00 

Gatton State School Parking on oval for Gatton Show      1,818.18 

Helidon State School P & F Association School Fete 200.00 

Tabeel Lutheran Home Tree Planting Project 200.00 

Lockyer Darts Association Inc. Junior Queensland Darts Finals 200.00 

Gatton Bowls Club Sponsor Ladies Bowls Carnival  90.91 

Lockyer District State High School Sponsor Annual Sports Award 136.36 

Faith Lutheran College Sports Awards Dinner 350.00 

Airforce Cadets 70th Anniversary Dinner      1,272.72 

Laidley District State School Legends of Term 3 Medallions 187.00 

Withcott State School Parents and Citizens Year 4 Students Cycle Course 500.00 

Faith Lutheran College Western District Ranges School Sports Shirts      1,000.00 

Forest Hill Festivities Association Face Painting Forest Hill Christmas Festivities 200.00 

Lockyer Valley Ministers Association 2017 Mayoral Christmas Carols Event      1,000.00 

Laidley District State School Legends of Term 4 Medallions 190.00 

Lockyer Darts Association Inc. T Ellis representing Queensland in Junior Darts 200.00 

International Women’s Day Hall Hire for International Women’s Day Breakfast 545.45 

Gatton Swimming Club
Sponsor 2018 Australia Day Swimming  
800 Classic

500.00 

Southern Queensland Reining Horse 
Association

Sponsor Pacific Coast Reining  
Spectacular 2018

220.00 

Gatton Bowls Club
Sponsor Gatton Ladies Fiesta Carnival  
Day May 2018

100.00 
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ORGANISATION NAME PURPOSE AMOUNT  $

Standardbred Association Queensland
Blue Ribbon Sponsor for 2018 State Harness 
and Hacking Competitions

200.00 

Laidley District State School Legends of Term 1 Medallions 187.00 

Jayde Kendall Day of Awareness Walk 
Public Liability Costs Jayde Kendall Day  
of Awareness Walk

167.92 

Dance Force Disneyland Hong Kong Dance Tour 500.00 

Teske Family 
Purchase of a banner to assist family with 
fundraising activities 

123.00 

Laidley Bowls Club Maroon Arm Bowlers 250.00 

Laidley Bowls Club Ladies Carnival 250.00 

Community Reflection & Thanksgiving Service Hall hire fees for service      960.00 

Laidley Lions Junior Rugby League Gorden Tallis Cup 250.00 

The South East Queensland Paint Horse  
Club Inc.

Queensland Paint Horse Championships 250.00 

Gatton Show Society Campdraft at the Gatton Show 2018 400.00 

Lockyer Uplands Catchments Inc. Lockyer in the Wild Photography Competition 250.00 

Papua New Guinea Lockyer Valley  
Community Inc.

Sponsorship of Aid Project 300.00 

TOTAL $14,326.04
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COMMERCIAL  
BUSINESS UNITS 
Council did not maintain any Commercial Business 
Units during the 2017-18 financial year.

ACTION TAKEN INVOLVING  
SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS
Council was not supplied with any services, facilities 
or activities by another local government under 
any agreements or joint activities and for which 
any special rates or charges were levied, during the 
financial year.

CHANGES TO TENDERS 
Council did not issue invitations to change any 
tenders under section 228(7) of the Local Government 
Regulation 2012 during 2017-18.

CONCESSIONS FOR RATES  
AND CHARGES GRANTED
Part 10 of the Local Government Regulation 
2012 provides Council with the ability to grant 
concessions to property owners in certain 
circumstances. For the 2017-18 financial year the 
following concessions were granted:

• �Property Identification No 253510 – concession 
granted due to financial hardship to allow an 
extended time for payment including an interest free 
period of six months.

• �Faith Lutheran College – rebate of general rates of 
$4,679.40 under Council’s Community Grant Policy 
for Not-For-Profit Organisations.

• �Council Pension Subsidy – rebate of up to  
$60 for eligible pensioners totaling $170,334.25  
for 3,037 properties.
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REGISTERS MAINTAINED
Registers maintained by Council:

• Register of Councillor Interests

• Register of Related Parties

• Register of Delegations by Council

• Register of Delegations by the Chief Executive 
Officer

• Register of Roads

• Register of General Charges and Regulatory Fees

• Register of Local Laws and Subordinate Local Laws

• Asset Register

• Fraud Allegation Register

• Register of Infrastructure Charges 

INTERNAL AUDIT 
Internal Audit activities are performed by a qualified 
internal audit consultant on a wholly outsourced 
basis. For the 2017-18 financial year, BDO Pty Ltd 
provided this service.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee 
endorsed an Internal Audit Plan at the 21 June 
2017 meeting and Internal Audit Progress Reports 
were presented to the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee meetings in August 2017, December 
2017, March 2018 and June 2018. 

Internal audit projects for the financial year included:

• Capital Project Planning (Asset Management)

• �Operational risk registers for Facilities, Regional 
Development, Marketing Communications 
and Engagement and Environment and Pest 
Management.

The Internal Audit Progress Report provided to the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee in June 
2018 presented an overview of the work performed 
by the Internal Auditor from July 2017 - June 2018 
in accordance with s.207(3), Local Government 
Regulation 2012.
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Lockyer Valley Regional Council
 GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Our Mission:
Lead, engage, empower.

2 FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
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Lockyer Valley Regional Council

State�ent of Co��rehensi�e Inco�e
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Income
Revenue
Recurrent Revenue
Rates� Le�ies and Charges
Fees and Charges
Rental Inco�e
Interest and In�est�ent Re�enue
Sales Re�enue

�ther Inco�e
�rants� Su�sidies� Contri�utions and �onations
Total Recurrent Revenue

Capital Revenue
�rants� Su�sidies� Contri�utions and �onations

Total Revenue

Ca�ital Inco�e

�otal Inco�e

���en�e�
Recurrent Expenses
E��loyee �enefits
�aterials and Ser�ices
Finance Costs
�e�reciation and A�ortisation
Total Recurrent Expenses

Ca�ital E��enses

�otal E��enses

Net Recurrent Result

Net Result
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2018 2017

3�8��         

12�883       

�2��3�       

18�2�2       
2��2�         

1�3��         

2��2��       

11�012    

8

1�

�8�02�       

�1��23       

Net Share of Interests in Associated Entities

�

����8��        

��18�         

2�328       

�����0       

3�11�         

�����         

23��22       

2���11    

�0�2��       

1�2            

2���2         
��32�         ��3��         

�8�1�2       

�1�20�       

1����         

10�3��       

�1��8�       

��332         

2�331         

2�833         

������       

3����         

�8���1       

��2�7         

1��120       

1��0��       

����1      

12����       

��223      

�

��

�
�

�

1�28�         1��3�         
1��1�         

38�300       
���3�         

32�            311            

3��8�0       

��000��000Notes

3�
3c
3d

2�

3a

3e

3c
�a

17�120       ���78��        

�he a�o�e state�ent should �e read in con�unction �ith the acco��anying Notes�           �age 2

42 Lockyer Valley Regional Council



Lockyer Valley Regional Council

State�ent o� �inancial �osition
 as at 30 June 2018

A���T�
Current Assets
Cas� and Cas� E�ui�alents
�n�est�ents
Trade and Ot�er Recei�a�les
�n�entories
Non�Current Assets classi�ied as ��eld �or Sale�
Total Current Assets

�on�Current Assets
Trade and Ot�er Recei�a�les
Associated Entities
�n�est�ent �ro�erty
�ro�erty� �lant and E�ui��ent
�ntangi�le Assets
Total �on�Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

L�A��L�T���
Current Liabilities
Trade and Ot�er �aya�les
�orro�ings
�ro�isions
Total Current Liabilities

�on�Current Liabilities
�orro�ings
�ro�isions
Total �on�Current Liabilities
TOTAL L�A��L�T�ES
Net Co��unity Assets

C������T� ����T�
Asset Re�aluation Sur�lus
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Reser�es
Total Co��unity E�uity
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Lockyer Valley Regional Council

�tate�ent of Changes in E�uity
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

��e���g �ala�ce �as �er Last �ear�s �udited �ccounts�

a. �et ��e�at��g �es�lt fo� t�e �ea�

b. �ther Co��rehensi�e �nco�e
� Re�aluations � �sset Re�aluation �ur�lus

�t�e� �o���e�e�s��e ��co�e

Total �o���e�e�s��e ��co�e

c. �ransfers to Reser�es
d. �ransfers fro� Reser�es

����t� �ala�ce as at �0 ���e 2018

��e���g �ala�ce �as �er Last �ear�s �udited �ccounts�

a. �n�est�ent in �ssociated Entities recognised for the �irst �i�e
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c. �et ��e�at��g �es�lt fo� t�e �ea�
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f. �ransfers fro� Reser�es 

����t� �ala�ce as at �0 ���e 2017
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12�           �                �                

7����      ����1�8  
�                8��1�        

���78��     

���78��       �                

11�012    

1� �                

11�012      

Notes ��000

Asset
�e�al�at�o� �eta��ed

��881        3�����1    ��1�17�    

��000��000

�t�e�

����8��       

�                

��22�      

11�012      

���78��       

�                

�                

�              

�                ���78��       

����3        ����722    

������7 

�                
�                

�������  

��08�          

Total

2018

�he a�o�e state�ent should �e read in con�unction �ith the acco��anying Notes� �age �
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Lockyer Valley Regional Council

�tate�ent of Cash �lo�s
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

�as������s��r�m��perating��cti�ities

Recei�ts fro� Custo�ers
�ay�ents to �u��liers and ���loyees

Receipts:
�n�est�ent and �nterest Re�enue Recei�ed
Rental �nco�e
Non Ca�ital �rants and Contri�utions
Other
Payments:
�orro�ing Costs

�et��as�����perating��cti�ities

�as������s��r�m��n�esting��cti�ities
Receipts:
�ale of �n�est�ent �ecurities
�roceeds on �is�osal of Land �eld for Resale
�roceeds on �is�osal of �ro�erty� �lant and ��ui��ent
�istri�utions Recei�ed fro� Joint Ventures and Associates
�rants� �u�sidies� Contri�utions and �onations
Payments:
�urchase of �n�est�ent �ecurities
�urchase of �ro�erty� �lant and ��ui��ent
�ay�ents for �ntangi�le Assets

�et��as�����n�esting��cti�ities

�as������s��r�m��inancing��cti�ities
Receipts:
�roceeds fro� �orro�ings and Ad�ances
Payments:
Re�ay�ent of �orro�ings and Ad�ances

�et��as�����inancing��cti�ities

�et��ncrease���ecrease����r�t�e�year

�lus���as��an���as�����i�a�ents����eginning

�as��an���as�����i�a�ents���c��sing

Additional �nfor�ation�

�lus� �n�estments��n��an����en�����year

��ta���as����as�����i�a�ents�an���n�estments

3�2            3��            

2017
��000 ��000

���03         

1����         

����2         

�1�8���        

���32         

1�8��         

3�388         

2018

�3��33       
��1�838�      ��3��8��      

�����2       

1�8��         

Notes

�                 

1��211     

2�300         

1����3     

�2�0�3�        

��3�3         

2�

�

�

1�0��         
�1�            

1�3�1         

��1��         3��0�         

�1��00�        

1��00         

27�2�1����

1���00       

�                 

�2�0�8�      

���02         

��7�1������

�2�0�8�        

�1�2���        

3�03�       

�12�11��    

�1���3��      

2���������

����1         

10�7������

1�002       

���120�      

1��200       

�8�3�1�      

���120�        

�                 

�1�333�        

�                 

1�1��         

�1��3���      

1�000         

�he a�o�e state�ent should �e read in con�unction �ith the acco��anying Notes� �age �
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   �inancial State�ents 2018 

 
 
 Lockyer Valley Regional Council 
 
 �otes to the �inancial State�ents 
 for the year ended 30 June 2018 
 
 �ote 1� Su��ary of Significant Accounting �olicies 
 
 

  
  �age � 
 

(1.a)  �asis of �re�aration 
 
�hese general �ur�ose financial state�ents are for 
the �eriod 1 July 201� to 30 June 2018 and ha�e 
�een �re�ared in co��liance �ith the re�uire�ents 
of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local 
Government Regulation 2012� 
 
�hese general �ur�ose financial state�ents co��ly 
�ith all accounting standards and inter�retations 
issued �y the Australian Accounting Standards 
�oard �AAS�� that are rele�ant to Council�s 
o�erations and effecti�e for the current re�orting 
�eriod�  �ecause the Council is a not�for��rofit entity 
and the Australian Accounting Standards include 
re�uire�ents for not�for��rofit entities �hich are 
inconsistent �ith �nternational �inancial Re�orting 
Standards ���RS�� to the e�tent these 
inconsistencies are a��lied� these financial 
state�ents do not co��ly �ith ��RS�  �he �ain 
i��acts are the offsetting of re�aluation and 
i��air�ent gains and losses �ithin a class of 
assets� and the ti�ing of the recognition of non�
reci�rocal grant re�enue� 
 
�hese financial state�ents ha�e �een �re�ared 
under the historical cost con�ention e�ce�t for the 
re�aluation of certain non�current assets� 
 
(1.b)  Date of Authorisation 
 
�he financial state�ents �ere authorised for issue 
on the date they �ere su��itted to the Auditor�
�eneral for final signature�  �his is the date the 
�anage�ent certificate is signed� 
 
(1.c)  �ritica� accounting �udge�ents and 
 �e� sources of esti�ation uncertaint� 
 
�n the a��lication of Council�s accounting �olicies� 
�anage�ent is re�uired to �ake �udge�ents� 
esti�ates and assu��tions a�out carrying �alues of 
assets and lia�ilities that are not readily a��arent 
fro� other sources�  �he esti�ates and associated 
assu��tions are �ased on historical e��erience and 
other factors that are considered to �e rele�ant�  
Actual results �ay differ fro� these esti�ates�  �he 
esti�ates and ongoing assu��tions are re�ie�ed on 
an ongoing �asis�  Re�isions to accounting 
esti�ates are recognised in the �eriod in �hich the 
esti�ate is re�ised and in future �eriods as rele�ant� 
 

Judge�ents� esti�ates and assu��tions that ha�e a 
�otential significant effect are outlined in the follo�ing 
financial state�ent notes� 
 

 �n�est�ent �ro�erty � �ote 12 and �ote 1� 
 Valuation and de�reciation of �ro�erty� �lant 

� ��ui��ent � �ote 13 and �ote 1� 
 �ro�isions � �ote 18 
 Contingencies � �ote 23 

 
(1.d)  �ounding and �o��arati�es 
 
A�ounts included in the financial state�ents ha�e 
�een rounded to the nearest �1�000 unless other�ise 
indicated� 
 
Co��arati�e infor�ation has �een restated �here 
necessary to �e consistent �ith disclosures in the 
current re�orting �eriod� 
 
 (1.e)  �a�ation 
 
�nco�e of local authorities and �u�lic authorities is 
e�e��t fro� Co��on�ealth ta�ation e�ce�t for 
�ringe �enefits �a� and �oods and Ser�ices �a� 
���S����  �he net a�ount of �S� reco�era�le fro� the 
A�� or �aya�le to the A�� is sho�n as an asset or 
lia�ility res�ecti�ely� 
 
�he associated entity of the Council �ays an inco�e 
ta� e�ui�alent to the Council in accordance �ith the 
re�uire�ents of the Local Government Act 2009� 
 
�he Council does not �ay �ayroll ta� to the 
�ueensland �o�ern�ent as its acti�ities are �elo� 
the threshold� 
 
(1.f) Ado�tion of �e� and �e�ised 
 Accounting Standards 

 
�n the current year� Council ado�ted all of the ne� and 
re�ised Standards and �nter�retations issued �y the 
Australian Accounting Standards �oard �AAS�� that 
are rele�ant to its o�erations and effecti�e for the 
current re�orting �eriod�  �he ado�tion of the ne� and 
re�ised Standards and �nter�retations has not 
resulted in any �aterial changes to Council�s 
accounting �olicies� 
 
�his year Council has a��lied AAS� 201��2 
A�end�ents to Australian Accounting Standards � 
�isclosure �nitiati�e� A�end�ents to AAS� 10� for 
the first ti�e� As a result� Council has disclosed �ore 
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   �inancial �tate�ents 2018 

 
 
 Lockyer Valley Regional Council 
 
 �otes to the �inancial �tate�ents 
 for the year ended 30 June 2018 
 
 �ote 1� �u��ary of �ignificant �ccounting �olicies �continued� 
 
 

 
  �age � 
 

infor�ation to e��lain changes in lia�ilities arising 
fro� financing acti�ities ��de�t reconciliation���  �his 
infor�ation is �resented in note 28� 
 
Lockyer Valley Regional Council has not a��lied any 
�ustralian �ccounting �tandards and �nter�retations 
that ha�e �een issued �ut are not yet effecti�e� 
 
���� 10�8 �nco�e of �ot�for��rofit �ntities and 
���� 1� Re�enue fro� Contracts �ith Custo�ers 
�ill first a��ly to the Council in its financial 
state�ents for 201��20� Council has co��enced 
analysing the ne� re�enue recognition re�uire�ents 
under these standards� �otential future i��acts 
identifia�le at the date of this re�ort are as follo�s� 
 

 �rants recei�ed to construct non�financial 
assets controlled �y Council �ill �e 
recognised as a lia�ility� and su�se�uently 
recognised �rogressi�ely as re�enue as the 
�erfor�ance o�ligations under the grant are 
satisfied� �t �resent� such grants are 
recognised as re�enue at the ti�e of recei�t� 
 

 �nder the ne� standards� other grants 
�resently recognised as re�enue at the ti�e 
of recei�t �ay �e eligi�le to �e recognised 
as re�enue �rogressi�ely as the associated 
�erfor�ance o�ligations are satisfied� �ut 
only if the associated �erfor�ance 
o�ligations are enforcea�le and sufficiently 
s�ecific� 
 
�uring the 201��18 financial year Council 
recei�ed �0��8 �illion in �re�aid grants� �f 
the standard had �een a��lied in this 
re�orting �eriod there �ould ha�e �een a 
reduction in re�enue of �0��8 �illion and an 
increase in current lia�ilities of �0��8 �illion�  

 
 �rants that are not enforcea�le and�or not 

sufficiently s�ecific �ill not �ualify for 
deferral� and continue to �e recognised as 
re�enue as soon as they are controlled� 
Council recei�es se�eral grants for �hich 
there are no sufficiently s�ecific 
�erfor�ance o�ligations � these grants are 
e��ected to continue �eing recognised as 
re�enue u�front assu�ing no change to the 
current grant arrange�ents� 
 
 
 

 �e�ending on the res�ecti�e contractual 
ter�s� the ne� re�uire�ents of ���� 1� �ay 
�otentially result in a change to the ti�ing of 
re�enue fro� sales of ser�ices such that 
so�e re�enue �ay need to �e deferred to a 
later re�orting �eriod to the e�tent that the 
Council has recei�ed cash �ut has not �et its 
associated �erfor�ance o�ligations �such 
a�ounts �ould �e re�orted as a lia�ility in the 
�eanti�e�� 
 
�uring the 201��18 financial year Council 
recei�ed �0�0� �illion in �re�aid leases� 
�ri�ate �orks� and hire of facilities� �f the 
standard had �een a��lied in this re�orting 
�eriod there �ould ha�e �een a reduction in 
re�enue of �0�0� �illion and an increase in 
current lia�ilities of �0�0� �illion�  
 

 Council currently recognises a�ounts 
recei�ed for �re��aid rates as re�enue in the 
year in �hich it is recei�ed� �nder ���� 
10�8� rates recei�ed in ad�ance �ill �e 
re�uired to �e recognised as a lia�ility until 
the rates le�y is calculated�  
 
�uring the 201��18 financial year Council 
recei�ed �1�81 �illion in �re�aid rates� �f the 
standard had �een a��lied in this re�orting 
�eriod there �ould ha�e �een a reduction in 
re�enue of �1�81 �illion and an increase in 
current lia�ilities of �1�81 �illion�  

 
�ther a�ended �ustralian �ccounting �tandards and 
�nter�retations �hich �ere issued at the date of 
authorisation of the financial re�ort� �ut ha�e future 
co��ence�ent dates are not likely to ha�e a �aterial 
i��act on the financial state�ents� 
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   �inancial �tate�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Notes to the �inancial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 2�a�� Council �unctions � Co��onent �escri�tions

Details relating to t�e �o�ncil�s ��nctions � acti�ities as re�orte� in �ote �(b) are as �ollo�s�

�eneral P�blic Ser�ices

P�blic �r�er an� Sa�et�

�cono�ic ���airs

�n�iron�ental Protection

�o�sing an� �o���nit� ��enities

�ecreation� ��lt�re an� �eligion

Social Protection
�he o��ecti�e of this function is to conduct the o�eration of Council�s childcare centres and youth de�elo��ent
�rogra��

�he o��ecti�e of this function is to �ro�ide acti�ities that are concerned �ith su��ort to co��unity grou�s�
co��unity de�elo��ent initiati�es� the �ro�ision of co��unity facilities such as halls and other co��unity
�uildings� �his function also co�ers disaster reco�ery �rogra�s including the re�uilding of Council�s flood affected
infrastructure as �ell as to�n �lanning and a��ro�als�

�he o��ecti�e of this function is to �ro�ide �rogra�s that deal �ith the natural en�iron�ent and �aste
�anage�ent� �t includes acti�ities such as �est and �eed �anage�ent and other en�iron�ental �rogra�s and
the collection� dis�osal and�or recycling of co��ercial and do�estic �aste�

�he o��ecti�e of this function is the �ro�ision of s�orting� recreation and cultural facilities such as s�orts grounds�
s�i��ing �ools� �arks and gardens� li�raries and art gallery�

�he o��ecti�e of this function is to �ro�ide internal go�ernance� organisational and ad�inistrati�e ser�ices� �t
includes legislati�e and e�ecuti�e �rogra�s to i��le�ent �olicy� coordinate acti�ities and �ro�ide su��ort to
�lected �e��ers� �t also includes the ad�inistrati�e �rogra�s to su��ort effecti�e ser�ice deli�ery to all internal
and e�ternal custo�ers� �ll �rogra�s not classified else�here are aggregated under this function�

�he o��ecti�e of this function is to �ro�ide �rogra�s and ser�ices that deal �ith nuisance� safety and �u�lic
�eha�iour� �t includes �rogra�s for the control of do�estic ani�als� ad�inistration and enforce�ent of locals la�s
and disaster �anage�ent� and su��ort for local Rural �ire �er�ice and �tate ��ergency �er�ices grou�s�

�he o��ecti�e of this function is to �ro�ide su��ort for �rogra�s and ser�ices that generate econo�ic acti�ity
�ithin the Region� �his includes su��ort to the local econo�y� de�elo��ent and i��le�entation of �usiness and
in�est�ent strategies� and local �usiness �ro�otion� �his function also includes road trans�ort and associated
ser�ices to �aintain and deli�er infrastructure such as roads� �ridges� drains and foot�aths�

�age 8
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   Financial �tate�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Notes to the Financial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 3� Re�enue �nalysis

�a�� Rates� Le�ies and Charges

General Rates
�e�arate Rates
��ecial Charges
�aste Collection Charges
��������������������������������������

Less�  �iscounts
Less�  �ensioner re�issions

����L R����� L�V��� �N� C��RG��

���� Fees and Charges

�ni�al Control
�uilding and �e�elo��ent Fees
Refuse �i� and Recycling
Childcare
Finance and Cor�orate Go�ernance
User Fees and Charges

����L F��� �N� C��RG��

�c�� �ther �nco�e

�ther �nco�e
�nco�e �a� ��ui�alent Recei�ed
�ale of �undry ��all Value �te�s
Fuel and �iesel Re�ate
Rates Legal Costs Reco�ered

����L ����R �NC���

Rates� le�ies� grants� rental inco�e� interest� di�idends� sales re�enue and other re�enue are recognised as
re�enue on recei�t of funds or earlier u�on unconditional entitle�ent to the funds�

�2�            

3���23       

���            

�8�            

Notes

38�300     

83              
331            

���3�       

320            
�1�            

��000��000

2����0       30�8��       

3�11�       

�1�0�           

��02�         

2018 2017

����1         ��3��         

��00�         ��2�3         
302            2��            

1��            

1�23�         

8�              

3�1�1         

3��8�0     

38��21       

�1���3�        �1�3���        
�1���           

��3            �81            

2���2       

1�003         

��332       

1���0         
1�008         

1�1            
180            

10�            203            
13�            

�age 10
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   �inancial �tate�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Notes to the �inancial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note �� �rants� �u�sidies� Contri�utions and �onations

�a� Recurrent

�eneral �ur�ose �rants
�tate �o�ern�ent �u�sidies and �rants
Co��on�ealth �o�ern�ent �u�sidies and �rants
Contri�utions

����L R�C�RR�N� �R�N��� ���������� 
C�N�R������N� �N� ��N����N�

��� Ca�ital

Monetary Capital Revenue
�tate �o�ern�ent �u�sidies and �rants
Co��on�ealth �o�ern�ent �u�sidies and �rants
Contri�utions
Non-Monetary Capital Revenue
�e�elo�er �ssets Contri�uted �y �e�elo�ers at �air Value

����L C�����L �R�N��� ���������� 
C�N�R������N� �N� ��N����N�

�hysical assets contri�uted to Council �y de�elo�ers in the for� of road �orks� stor��ater and �ark e�ui��ent�
are recognised �hen the de�elo��ent �eco�es �on �aintenance�� and there is sufficient infor�ation in the for�
of �lans and dra�ings to deter�ine the a��ro�i�ate s�ecifications and fair �alue of such assets�

�is�osal of non�current assets� discount rate ad�ust�ents to restoration �ro�isions and re�aluations of in�est�ent
�ro�erty� and �lant and e�ui��ent are recognised as either ca�ital inco�e or ca�ital e��enses de�ending on
�hether they result in accounting gains or losses�

Ca�ital Re�enue includes grants and su�sidies recei�ed �hich are tied to s�ecific �ro�ects for the re�lace�ent 
or u�grade of e�isting non�current assets and�or in�est�ent in ne� assets� �t also includes non�cash
contri�utions �hich are usually infrastructure assets recei�ed fro� de�elo�ers� �ll other re�enue has �een
classified as recurrent�

13

Notes ��000

3���1         

2018 2017

��3��       

2����         
���            

�00            

���            

2�103         

10�3��     

��32�       

13�            

��2�8         

108            

1��            
23�            

��000

�����       

��18�         

��222         

�8�            

3��2�         3���3         

�age 11
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   �inancial �tate�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Notes to the �inancial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note �� ���loyee �enefits

�ages and �alaries
Annual� �ick and Long �er�ice Lea�e �ntitle�ents
�u�erannuation
Councillor Re�uneration
Other

Less: Ca�italised ���loyee ���enses

�O�AL ���LO��� ��N��I��

Additional information:

�otal ���loyees at year end:

Ad�inistration �taff
�e�ot and Outdoors �taff
�otal full ti�e e�ui�alent e��loyees

�otal �lected �e��ers

Note �� �aterials and �er�ices

Ad�ertising
Ad�inistration �u��lies and Consu�a�les
Audit of Annual �inancial �tate�ents �y the Auditor��eneral of �ueensland
Co��unications and I�
Consultancy �er�ices
Contractors
�onations �aid
Insurance
In�est�ent �ro�erty ���enses
�o�er
Re�airs and �aintenance
�u�scri�tions and Registrations
�ra�el
Other

�O�AL �A��RIAL� AN� ��RVIC��

�0              

����8         

18�2�2     

28�            
1�0��         
1���3         

1��1�         1�110         

�2�            

83�            80�            

��              

�12            

1�3�8         

�8�            

1�083         

��              

1�1�3         

2018

2��8�         

2017

��2            

18���1       

�28            

��000��000

1�8            

23��22     

��1            

�                

2��318       

�              

2��3��       

2��2��     

1��            

�3�11��        �2�8���        

��8            

2017

2�238         
1����         

32�          

31�            380            
2018

18�            

31�          

�2�            

22�            

1�8��         

8�              

��00�         

1��            

1��0��     

���2�         

Notes

2�

1�1�1         1�0��         

1��8��       
��321         
2����         

�age 12

52 Lockyer Valley Regional Council



   Financial State�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Notes to the Financial State�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note �� Finance Costs

Finance costs � �ueensland Treasury Cor�oration
�ank Charges
I��air�ent of Recei�a�les and �ad �e�ts �ritten Off
�uarry Reha�ilitation
Refuse Restoration

TOTAL FINANCE COSTS

All �orro�ing costs are e��ensed in the �eriod in �hich they are incurred�
No �orro�ing costs are ca�italised on �ualifying assets�

Note 8� Ca�ital E��enses

�a� Loss on dis�osal of non�current assets

�roceeds fro� the �is�osal of �lant and Other E�ui��ent
Less�  �ook Value of �lant and Other E�ui��ent �is�osed

�roceeds fro� �is�osal of Land and �uildings
Less� �ook Value of Land and �uildings �is�osed

�roceeds fro� the �is�osal of Road � �rainage Net�ork
Less� �ook Value of Road � �rainage Net�ork �is�osed

�roceeds fro� the �is�osal of Other Assets
Less� �ook Value of  Other Assets �is�osed

�roceeds fro� Land �eld for Resale 
Less� �ook Value of Land �eld for Resale �is�osed

TOTAL CA�ITAL E��ENSES

��28�           
��3��           

�                 

12              
��11�           

����             

�03            

2��2�       

���1�           

�32            

�2�822�        

�3�8���      

�1�00��        

�3�00��        

1�000         1�3�1         

�                 

�2�822�        

��28�           

�                 

102            

�2�            

122            

��0            

2�833       

�38�             

1���2         

2                

��000
2018

1����         

2017
��000

1��            

13

18

13

13

13

Notes

11

18

��3            

2018

�2�2�           
��22�           
1�0            

��3��           

2017

�����           

�                 

�3�00��        

���            

�1�1���        

�                 

�1�3�           

���               

�3�����      

�age 13
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   �inancial State�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Notes to the �inancial State�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note �� Cash� Cash E�ui�alents and �n�est�ents

Cash and Cash E�ui�alents

Cash at �ank and on �and
Cash E�ui�alent �ssets1

� �e�osits at Call
Total �as� an� �as� ���i�alents

�n�est�ents � Current

Ter� �e�osits
Total ��rrent In�est�ents

T�T�L C�S� �SSETS� C�S� E���V�LENTS �N� �NVEST�ENTS

1 Those �n�est�ents �here ti�e to �aturity �fro� date of �urchase� is � 3 �ths�

Restricte� �as�� �as� ���i�alents an� In�est�ents

Council�s Cash and Cash E�ui�alents are su��ect to a nu��er of �nternal and E�ternal 
Restrictions that li�it a�ounts a�aila�le for discretionary or future use�
These include:

E�ternally i��osed E��enditure Restrictions at the re�orting date relate to the follo�ing 
cash assets:

�ns�ent �o�ern�ent �rants and Su�sidies
Total ��ternal Restrictions

�nternally i��osed E��enditure Restrictions at the re�orting date:

�uture Ca�ital �orks
�uture Recurrent E��enditure
Total Internal Restrictions

 Total �ns�ent Restricte� �as�� �as� ���i�alents an� In�est�ents

Cash and cash e�ui�alents includes cash on hand� all cash and che�ues recei�ted �ut not �anked at the year end�
de�osits held at call �ith financial institutions� other short�ter�� highly li�uid in�est�ents �ith original �aturities of
three �onths or less that are readily con�erti�le to kno�n a�ounts of cash and �hich are su��ect to an insignificant
risk of changes in �alue� and �ank o�erdrafts�

Cash at �ank is held �ith the National �ustralia �ank and �eritage �uilding Society in nor�al �usiness che�ue
accounts� Cash at call is held �ith �ueensland Treasury Cor�oration� �nterest rates are deter�ined on a daily
�asis� Short and long ter� de�osits are held �ith �arious �anking institutions �ith �aturities ranging u� to t�el�e
�onths and interest rates fro� 2��8� to 2��2��

1���00       

2����         

�3            

��838         

1��200     

�3              

����1       

1��200       

2018

8��00         

��000

�82            

8�1            1�010         

1���00     

�                 
2���1       

2����3     2��2�1     

3�2�3       

�82          

��000

��838       

��881       

��              

2017

���33         
10���3     

Notes

�age 1�
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   �inancial �tate�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Notes to the �inancial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 10� �rade and �ther Recei�a�les

Current

Ratea�le Re�enue and �tility Charges
�ther �e�tors
��� Reco�era�le
�ccrued Re�enues 
� �nterest on �n�est�ents �incl� �������
�re�ay�ents
Total

l�������o����o���o�����a�����t
�ther �e�tors
Total���o����o���o�����a�����t���������a�l��

����L C�RR�N� �R��� �N� ����R R�C��V��L��

Non�Current

Loans and �d�ances to �ssociates
Total

����L N�N�C�RR�N� �R��� �N� ����R R�C��V��L��

�rade and other recei�a�les are recognised at the a�ounts due at the ti�e of sale or ser�ice deli�ery�

�nterest is charged on outstanding rates at a rate of 11� �er annu�� �e�tors in�oiced during the 2018 financial
year and �hich re�ain outstanding for greater than 30 days� �ear interest at the rate of 11��

�ecause Council is e��o�ered under the �ro�isions of the Local Government Act 2009 to sell an o�ner�s �ro�erty
to reco�er outstanding rate de�ts� Council does not i��air any rates recei�a�les�

�he collecta�ility of other recei�a�les is assessed �eriodically�  �he a�ount is calculated as a �ercentage of
recei�a�les�  �his considers �ast history of actual defaults� and an assess�ent of the likelihood of future defaults�

Notes

3�3            

2018

1���3�       

1�11�         

�����       

1���3�       

���               

1���3�       

1���3�     

�3�               

1���3�       

2�0�0         

��000

����1         

�����       

��000

1�3��         1�0��         

�3�               

2017

���               

31�            

1�03�         

2��22         

�0�            �1�            
���82         

1���3�     

�age 1�

55Annual Report 2017–2018



   �inancial State�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Notes to the �inancial State�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 11� Non�Current Assets Classified as ��eld for Sale�

��������e����sse�s���el��������le�
Land

���AL N�N�C�RR�N� ASS��S CLASS����� AS ���L� ��R SAL��

Council holds land at �hil�s Road� �rantha�� and S�ithfield Road� �atton�  Negotiations for the sale of this land
is �eing undertaken�  

Council holds land at Victoria Street� �orest �ill�  �his land is �eing offered for sale through real estate agents�

Council sold land at �oodlands Road� �atton� in July 201��   �he sale �alue �atched the fair �alue of the land�

Note 1� descri�es the �aluation techni�ues that �ere used to deter�ine the fair �alue of the land� �hich is
categorised as a Le�el 2 �aluation� 

Reconciliation of Non�Current Assets ��eld for Sale�

Assets ��eld for Sale�

��e�������l���e
less: Carrying Value of Assets Sold
��l���e�s��ll���s�l�����e��12������s:
�l�s��e������s�e����������:
Assets ��eld for Sale� fro� �ro�erty� �lant and ��ui��ent
Assets ��eld for Sale� fro� �n�est�ent �ro�erties
�l�s������l���e������������e����sse�s���el��������le�

1��22         

3�0�2         

2017
��000

3�0�2       

130            

3�0�2         3�118         

�3�            

�1�1���        
2�0��         

2��8�       

�1�00��        

3�0�2    2��8�      
12

8

13

Notes
2018
��000

2��8�         

�                 1�000         

�age 1�
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   �inancial �tate�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Notes to the �inancial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 12� �n�est�ent �ro�erty

Re�aluation �d� to the �tate�ent of Co��rehensi�e �nco�e
�ransfers fro���to� �ro�erty� �lant and ��ui��ent

����L �NV�����N� �R���R��

�n�est�ent �ro�erty co��rises land at �ryhorn �treet� �rantha��  Lease contracts are in negotiations�

�n�est�ent �ro�erty does not include Co��unity �ousing�

�he 30 June 2018 in�est�ent �ro�erty and land �as �alued at fair �alue �y� �i� �da�s� Certified �racticing Valuer�
Registration Nu��er 212� of �ickles Valuation �er�ices�  �ickles Valuation �er�ices ha�e e�tensi�e e��erience in
�aluing �ro�erties of this nature in surrounding areas�  �air Value �as deter�ined �y reference to �arket �ased
e�idence including o�ser�a�le historical sales data in the rele�ant �arket for �ro�erties of a si�ilar nature�

�ains or losses arising fro� changes in the fair �alue of in�est�ent �ro�erty are recognised as inco�e or
e��enses res�ecti�ely for the �eriod in �hich they arise� �n�est�ent �ro�erty is not de�reciated and is not tested 
for i��air�ent�

1�8��         

1�8�0       

1�8��         

1�8��       

�                 
�1�000�        

2018 2017
��000��000

�                 
1�000         

3                

Notes

�air �alue at �eginning of �inancial �ear

13
�ransfers fro���to� �ssets �eld for �ale 11 �                 

�age 1�
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�inancial �tate�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

�otes to the �inancial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

�ote 13� Pro�erty� Plant and E�ui��ent  �continued�

Valuations � defined �y reference to:

Land
 � �asis of �aluation: �air Value
 � �ate of �aluation: 30 June 2018
 � Valuer: Pickles Valuation �er�ices � �i� Ada�s� AAP�� CPV 212�

�uildings
 � �asis of �aluation: �air Value 
 � �ate of �aluation: 30 June 2018
 � Valuer: Pickles Valuation �er�ices � �i� Ada�s� AAP�� CPV 212�

Plant and Other E�ui��ent
 � �asis of �aluation: Cost less accu�ulated de�reciation

Road and �rainage �et�ork
 � �asis of �aluation: �air Value 
 � �ate of �aluation: 30 June 2018
 � Valuer: Pickles Valuation �er�ices � �i� Ada�s� AAP�� CPV 212�

Other Assets
 � �asis of �aluation: Cost less accu�ulated de�reciation

�orks �n Progress
 � �asis of �aluation: Cost

Art�orks
 � �asis of �aluation: �air Value 
 � �ate of �aluation: 30 June 201�
 � Valuer: Pickles Valuation �er�ices � �i� Ada�s� AAP�� CPV 212�

�age 20
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�inancial �tate�ent� 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

�ote� to the �inancial �tate�ent�
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

�ote 13� �ro�erty� �lant and E�ui��ent  �continued�

Valuation� � defined �y reference to: �continued�

�ark and Ce�etery E�ui��ent
 � �a�i� of �aluation: �air Value 
 � �ate of �aluation: 30 June 201�
 � Valuer: �ickle� Valuation �er�ice� � �i� �da��� ����� C�V 212�

�a�te
 � �a�i� of �aluation: �air Value 
 � �ate of �aluation: 30 June 2018
 � Valuer: �ickle� Valuation �er�ice� � �i� �da��� ����� C�V 212�

Each cla�� of �ro�erty� �lant and e�ui��ent i� �tated at co�t or fair �alue le��� �here a��lica�le� any accu�ulated
de�reciation and accu�ulated i��air�ent lo���  �te�� of �lant and e�ui��ent �ith a total �alue of le�� than ���000�
and infra�tructure a��et� and �uilding� �ith a total �alue of le�� than �10�000� are treated a� an e��en�e in the year
of ac�ui�ition�  �ll other ite�� of �ro�erty� �lant and e�ui��ent are ca�itali�ed�

Ca�ital �ork �n �rogre�� i� the co�t of �ro�erty� �lant and e�ui��ent �eing con�tructed �y the Council �hich
include� the co�t of �urcha�ed �er�ice�� �aterial�� direct la�our and an a��ro�riate �ro�ortion of la�our o�erhead��

Land  and art�ork� i� not de�reciated a� it ha� an unli�ited u�eful life�  �e�reciation on other �ro�erty� �lant and 
e�ui��ent a��et� i� calculated on a �traight�line �a�i� �o a� to �rite�off the net co�t or re�alued a�ount of each 
de�recia�le a��et� le�� it� e�ti�ated re�idual �alue� �rogre��i�ely o�er it� e�ti�ated u�eful life to the Council� 
�anage�ent �elie�e that the �traight�line �a�i� a��ro�riately reflect� the �attern of con�u��tion of all Council
a��et��

���et� are de�reciated fro� the date of ac�ui�ition or� in re��ect of internally con�tructed a��et�� fro� the ti�e an 
a��et i� co��leted and co��i��ioned ready for u�e�

�here a��et� ha�e �e�arately identifia�le co��onent� that are �u��ect to regular re�lace�ent� the�e co��onent�
are a��igned u�eful li�e� di�tinct fro� the a��et to �hich they relate�  �ny e��enditure that increa�e� the originally
a��e��ed ca�acity or �er�ice �otential of an a��et i� ca�itali�ed and the ne� de�recia�le a�ount i� de�reciated
o�er the re�aining u�eful life of the a��et to the Council�

�e�reciation �ethod�� e�ti�ated u�eful li�e� and re�idual �alue� of �ro�erty� �lant and e�ui��ent a��et� are 
re�ie�ed at the end of each re�orting �eriod and ad�u�ted �here nece��ary to reflect any change� in the �attern of 
con�u��tion� �hy�ical �ear and tear� technical or co��ercial o��ole�cence� or �anage�ent intention�� �he 
condition a��e���ent� �erfor�ed a� �art of the annual �aluation �roce�� for a��et� �ea�ured at de�reciated 
current re�lace�ent co�t are u�ed to e�ti�ate the u�eful li�e� of the�e a��et� at each re�orting date�

�age 21
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�inancial State�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

�otes to the �inancial State�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

�ote 1�� �air Value �easure�ents

�he fair �alue of assets and lia�ilities �ust �e esti�ated in accordance �ith �arious Accounting Standards for
either recognition and �easure�ent re�uire�ents or for disclosure �ur�oses�

AAS� 13 re�uires disclosure of fair �alue �easure�ents �y le�el of the follo�ing fair �alue �easure�ent
hierarchy:
�e�el 1� �uoted �rices �unad�usted� in acti�e �arkets for identical assets or lia�ilities�
�e�el 2� �n�uts other than �uoted �rices included �ithin Le�el 1 that are o�ser�a�le for the asset or lia�ility
             either directly or indirectly�
�e�el �� �n�uts for the asset or lia�ility that are not �ased on o�ser�a�le �arket data �uno�ser�a�le in�uts��

(1) T�e �ollo�ing ta�le ��esents all assets and lia�ilities t�at �a�e �een �eas��ed and �e�ognised at
     �ai� �al�es� 

2018
�ssets �eld �o� �ale
� Land
Total �ssets �eld �o� �ale

�n�est�ent ��o�e�ties
� Land
Total �n�est�ent ��o�e�ties

��o�e�t�� �lant and ���i��ent
� Land
� �uildings
� Road and �rainage �et�ork
� Art�orks
� �ark and Ce�etery ��ui��ent
� �aste
Total ��o�e�t�� �lant and ���i��ent

2017
�ssets �eld �o� �ale
� Land
Total �ssets �eld �o� �ale

�n�est�ent ��o�e�ties
� Land
Total �n�est�ent ��o�e�ties

��o�e�t�� �lant and ���i��ent
� Land
� �uildings
� Road and �rainage �et�ork
� Art�orks
� �ark and Ce�etery ��ui��ent
Total ��o�e�t�� �lant and ���i��ent

��000

�              �7�8�1    �11�8�7  ����708     
30�0��18 �              �              1��1��    1��1��       

�1��23     
30�0��18 ��1��      

30�0��18 �            

�            ���18      ���18       30�0��1� �            

�            �33�083  �33�083   
30�0��1� �            2��       

1�8�0    

�              

�              2��          

30�0��18 �            �            �1��23    

in�uts
��000 ��000

�ai� �al�e �eas��e�ent �sing�
�e�el �

Significant
uno�ser�a�le

in�uts

�e�el 2
Significant
o�ser�a�le

��000

1�8�0       

�              

�            3���0�  

�              1�8�0         

�2���2     

1�8�0      
30�0��18

30�0��18

�ate
of latest
�aluation

�            
2��8�      

�            

2��8�    

�e�el 1
�uoted

�rices in
acti�e �kts

�              

�              

Total

2��8�       

�              

2��8�         

��000 ��000 ��000 ��000

30�0��1� �            3�0�2    �              3�0�2       
�              ��0�2      �              ��0�2         

30�0��1� �            1�8��    �              1�8��       
�              1�8�7      �              1�8�7         

30�0��1� �            3��2�3  ��0�1      �2�2��     
30�0��1� �            �            ���8��    ���8��     
30�0��1� �            �            �1��8��  �1��8��   
30�0��1� �            2��       �              2��          
30�0��1� �            �            ��820      ��820       

�              �7��00    �88��00  �2��100     

�age 22
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�inancial �tate�ent� 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

�ote� to the �inancial �tate�ent�
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

�ote 1�� �air Value �ea�ure�ent� �continued�

(�)���ans���s�������n�L�������and�L��������a����a��������a�����s

�uring the year� there �ere no tran�fer� �et�een Le�el 1 and Le�el 2 �air Value hierarchie� for recurring fair
�alue �ea�ure�ent��

(3)��a��a���n�����n����s��s�d����d������L�������and�L�����3��a����a���s

�here Council i� una�le to deri�e �air Valuation� u�ing �uoted �arket �rice� of identical a��et� �ie� Le�el 1 in�ut��
Council in�tead utili�e� a ��read of �oth o��er�a�le in�ut� �Le�el 2 in�ut�� and uno��er�a�le in�ut� �Le�el 3 in�ut���

�he �air Valuation techni�ue� Council ha� e��loyed �hile utili�ing Le�el 2 and Le�el 3 in�ut� are a� follo���

�n��s���n�����������s
Council o�tain� inde�endent �aluation� at lea�t e�ery three year� for all in�e�t�ent �ro�ertie�� �he la�t �aluation �a�
undertaken �y �ickle� Valuation �er�ice�� Regi�tered Valuer�� a� at 30 June 2018�

Council�� in�e�t�ent �ro�ertie� are all �acant land in area� �ith regular �ale� of co��ara�le �ro�ertie�� �herefore
they �ere �alued u�ing the direct co��ari�on a��roach� �ale� of �ro�ertie� �ith �i�ilar feature� ha�e �een  analy�ed
on a �a�i� of a rate �er ��uare �etre of land area and co��ared to the �u��ect �ro�ertie� ha�ing regard to �alue 
influencing factor� �uch a� location� �ite area� �oning and relati�ity of �arket condition� at the ti�e of �ale� �o
allo�ance ha� �een �ade for reali�ation e��en�e�� 

Land
�here there i� an acti�e and li�uid �arket a� e�idenced �y �ale� tran�action� of �i�ilar �ro�erty ty�e�� a �arket
���roach �y �ay of �irect Co��ari�on or �nco�e �ethod� can �e utili�ed� and are acce�ted �aluation
�ethodologie� under ���� 13� �f a �arket ���roach i� ado�ted� the �aluation i� dee�ed to �e a Le�el 2 in�ut�

�irect Co��ari�on �ethod �hich i� con�idered a Le�el 2 in�ut on the �air Value �ierarchy� in�ol�e� the analy�i�
of �ale� e�idence and co��ari�on� �ith the �u��ect land taking into account �atter� �uch a� area� location and 
other general �ite characteri�tic�� �he �irect Co��ari�on a��roach ha� �een utili�ed in the �aluer�� a��e���ent 
for all LVRC Land ���et�� ho�e�er the fair �alue �ea�ure�ent ha� �een either a Le�el 2 or 3� de�ending on
their a��u��tion� a� to�

� �hether the land i� �u��ect to re�triction� a� to u�e and�or �ale�
� �hether there i� no acti�e �arket�

�f the�e a��u��tion� a��ly to the land a� �er the �etter �ractice guideline� in �ueen�land �rea�ury �C�� 3� the
Valuer� ha�e �ea�ured the e��ected �air Value a� a Le�el 3� �o�e�er if an acti�e �arket can �e e�ta�li�hed and
there are no unrea�ona�le re�triction� a� to u�e and�or �ale� the Valuer� ha�e dee�ed the �ea�ure�ent to �e a
Le�el 2� Land that i� utili�ed for foot�ath or acce�� re�triction �ur�o�e�� land that i� a �olu�etric title� or due to it�
general characteri�tic� land that ha� no o��er�a�le acti�e �arket� ha�e �een a��e��ed a� a Le�el 3�

�he �aluation techni�ue� u�ed to �ea�ure fair �alue �a�i�i�e the u�e of o��er�a�le data �here it i� a�aila�le 
and relie� a� little a� �o��i�le on entity ��ecific�� �he di�clo�ure of �aluation e�ti�ate� i� de�igned to �ro�ide
u�er� �ith an in�ight into the �udge�ent� that ha�e �een �ade in the deter�ination of fair �alue��

�age 23
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�ote 1�� Fair Value �ea�ure�ent� �continued�

(3)��a��ation�tec�ni��es��se��to��eri�e��e�e����an���e�e��3��air��a��es��continued�

��i��ings
�ue to the �redo�inantly ��eciali�ed nature of Local Go�ern�ent ���et�� infra�tructure� �uilding and other a��et
�aluation� are undertaken on a Co�t ���roach �Current Re�lace�ent Co�t�� an acce�ted �aluation 
�ethodology under ����13� �he co�t a��roach i� dee�ed a Le�el 3 �n�ut� �nder thi� a��roach� the 
follo�ing �roce�� ha� �een ado�ted�

�here there i� no �arket� the net current �alue of an a��et i� the gro�� current �alue le�� accu�ulated de�reciation 
to reflect the con�u�ed or e��ired �er�ice �otential of the a��et� �u�li�hed�a�aila�le �arket data for recent �ro�ect��
and�or �u�li�hed co�t guide� are utili�ed to deter�ine the e�ti�ated re�lace�ent co�t �gro�� �alue� of the 
a��et� including allo�ance� for �reli�inarie� and �rofe��ional fee��

� condition a��e���ent i� a��lied� �hich i� �a�ed on factor� �uch a� the age of the a��et� o�erall condition a�
noted �y the Valuer during in��ection� econo�ic and�or functional o��ole�cence� �he condition a��e���ent 
directly tran�late� to the le�el of de�reciation a��lied�

�n deter�ining the le�el of accu�ulated de�reciation for �a�or a��et�� �e ha�e di�aggregated into �ignificant 
co��onent� �hich e�hi�it different �attern� of con�u��tion �u�eful li�e��� Re�idual �alue� �hich i� the �alue at the
ti�e the a��et i� con�idered to �e no longer a�aila�le� i� al�o factored in� �he condition a��e���ent i� a��lied
on a co��onent �a�i��

�hile the re�lace�ent co�t of the a��et� could �e �u��orted �y �arket �u��lied e�idence �le�el 2�� the other 
uno��er�a�le in�ut� ��uch a� e�ti�ate� of re�idual �alue� u�eful life� and a��et condition� �ere al�o 
re�uired �le�el 3��

�he Condition rating in�ut� can �e defined in the follo�ing ta�le� noting that the condition a��e���ent� for LVRC 
ha�e �een a��lied in 0�� inter�al��

Rating Description ��o���i�e�Re�aining
1 �� �e� �1�100
2 Good �1��0
3 Fair 11��0
� �oor ��10
� Failed a��et 0�3

�he �aluation techni�ue� u�ed in  the deter�ination  of fair �alue� �a�i�i�e the u�e of o��er�a�le data 
�here it i� a�aila�le and relie� a� little a� �o��i�le on entity ��ecific�� �he di�clo�ure of �aluation e�ti�ate� i�
de�igned to �ro�ide u�er� �ith an in�ight into the �udge�ent� that ha�e �een �ade in the deter�ination of fair �alue��

�age 2�
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�ote 1�� Fair Value �ea�ure�ent� �continued�

(3)��a��ation�tec�ni��es��se��to��eri�e��e�e����an���e�e��3��air��a��es��continued�

�n�rastr�ct�re���ropert�����ant�an�����ip�ent���ar�s����aste�an���e�eteries
�ue to the �redo�inately ��eciali�ed nature of Local Go�ern�ent ���et�� the infra�tructure �aluation� ha�e �een
undertaken on a Co�t ���roach �Current Re�lace�ent Co�t�� an acce�ted �aluation �ethodology under ����13
�he Co�t a��roach i� dee�ed a Le�el 3 �n�ut� �nder thi� a��roach� the follo�ing �roce�� ha� �een ado�ted�

� �here there i� no �arket� the net current �alue of an a��et i� the gro�� current �alue le�� accu�ulated de�reciation
to reflect the con�u�ed or e��ired �er�ice �otential of the a��et� �u�li�hed�a�aila�le �arket data for recent �ro�ect��
and�or �u�li�hed co�t guide� are utili�ed to deter�ine the e�ti�ated re�lace�ent co�t �gro�� �alue�  of the a��et�
including allo�ance� for �reli�inarie� and �rofe��ional fee�� �hi� i� con�idered a Le�el 2 in�ut�

� � condition a��e���ent i� a��lied� �hich i� �a�ed on factor� �uch a� the age of the a��et� o�erall condition a�
noted �y the Valuer during in��ection� econo�ic and�or functional o��olecence� �he condition a��e���ent directly
tran�late� to the le�el of de�reciation a��lied�

� �n deter�ining the le�el of accu�ulated de�reciation for �a�or a��et�� �e ha�e di��aggregated into �ignificant
co��onent� �hich e�hi�it different �attern� of con�u��tion �u�eful li�e��� Re�idual �alue� �hich i� the �alue at the
ti�e the a��et i� con�idered to �e no longer a�aila�le� i� al�o factored in� �he condition a��e���ent i� a��lied
on a co��onent �a�i��

� �hile the re�lace�ent co�t of the a��et� could �e �u��orted �y �arket �u��lied e�idence �Le�el 2�� the other 
uno��er�a�le in�ut� ��uch a� e�ti�ate� of re�idual �alue� u�eful life� and a��et condition� �ere al�o re�uired �Le�el 3��

�o calculate the a��ro�riate a�ount of accu�ulated de�reciation� a��et� �ere either �u��ect to a �ite in��ection or an
a��e���ent to deter�ine re�aining u�eful life� �here �ite in��ection� �ere conducted �i�e� for a �a��le of a�o�e
ground a��et��� the a��et� �ere allocated a condition a��e���ent thi� �a� then �caled to LVRC 1�� �core� �hich
i� u�ed to e�ti�ate re�aining u�eful life�

Rating Description ��o���i�e�Re�aining
1 �� �e� �1�100
2 Good �1��0
3 Fair 11��0
� �oor ��10
� Failed ���et 0�3

�here �ite in��ection� �ere not conducted �i�e� for �a��i�e a��et� out�ide the �a��le or underground�� the 
re�aining u�eful life �a� calculated on a��et age and e�ti�ated u�eful life�

�he �aluation techni�ue� u�ed in the deter�ination of fair �alue� �a�i�i�e the u�e of o��er�a�le data �here it i� 
a�aila�le and relie� a� little a� �o��i�le on entity ��ecific�� �he di�clo�ure of �aluation e�ti�ate� i� de�igned to 
�ro�ide u�er� �ith an in�ight into the �udge�ent� that ha�e �een �ade in the deter�ination of fair �alue��

�age 2�
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�ote 1�� �air Value �ea�ure�ent� �continued�

Road� � Road �tructure�
�he Road� and Road �tructure� a��et� �ere cla��ified a� �a��i�e a��et�� �a��i�e a��et� �ere further 
co��onenti�ed and con�i�ted of �or�ation� �a�e and �u���a�e �a�e�ent� and �eal for Road� a��et� and 
�u��tructure� �u�er�tructure� Retaining �ork�� �eck and other� for Road �tructure�� �nit rate� �ere a��lied 
�a�ed on �i�ilar recent �ro�ect co�t�� unit rate data�a�e�� indice�� Ra�lin�on�� Con�truction rate� and �uotation��

Road� are �eg�ented �a�ed on the �e�art�ent of �ran��ort � �ain Road� �tandard� and the�e are cla��ified
a� �or�ed� �nfor�ed� and then further �y �ealed and un�ealed ty�e��

�he CRC �a� calculated �y reference to a��et length and �idth for �or�ation and �eal and de�th for �a�e�ent��

Location factor�� �oil ty�e� �eather condition�� ra� �aterial acce�� and �er�ice le�el �tandard� �ere a��u�ed to
�e unifor� acro�� the Council area�

�r�an �nfra�tructure
�he �r�an infra�tructure a��et� �ere cla��ified a� �a��i�e a��et�� �a��i�e a��et� �ere further co��onenti�ed
and con�i�ted of ���orted �tor��ater �it�� �tor��ater �ra�ity �i�e�ork� �oot�ath� and �er� and Channel� �nit
rate� �ere a��lied �a�ed on �i�ilar recent �ro�ect co�t�� unit rate data�a�e�� indice�� Ra�lin�on�� Con�truction
rate� and �uotation��

�he CRC �a� calculated �y reference to a��et length for �i�e�ork and� length� �idth� nu��er of connection� and
de�th for �it��

Location factor�� �oil ty�e� �eather condition�� ra� �aterial acce�� and �er�ice le�el �tandard� �ere a��u�ed to �e
unifor� acro�� the Council area�

�ercentage of ���et� �n��ected
� �nfra�tructure ���et� including Road �et�ork �� to 20� ��ridge� �0��
� �a�te 100�
� Land �0�
� �uilding� �0�

Re�ie� of Valuation�
�ll �aluation� �ere �u��ected to re�ie� �y Council engineering� facilitie� and finance �taff including� 
� unit rate�
� condition rating�
� u�eful li�e�
� de�reciation
� �ritten do�n �alue�
� re�idual �alue�

�age 2�
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Notes to the �inancial �tate�ents
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Note 1�� Intangi�le Assets

Intangi�le Assets re�resent identifia�le non��onetary assets �ithout �hysical su�stance�

Intangi�le Assets are as follo�s�

�o�t�are
�pening �ross Carr�ing �alue
Additions
�is�osals
Closing �ross Carr�ing �alue

�pening Accumulated Amortisation
A�ortisation
Accu�ulated A�ortisation charges �ritten off
Closing Accumulated Amortisation

�et Carr�ing �alue

���AL IN�AN�I�L� A����� � N�� ���� VAL�� 1

1. ��e �et �oo� �alue o� �ntangible Assets represent:
� �oft�are

�oft�are assets ha�e a finite life esti�ated at �et�een 3 and 10 years�

�traight line a�ortisation has �een used �ith no residual �alue� 

Intangi�le assets �ith a cost or other �alue e�ceeding �10�000 are recognised in the 
financial state�ents� Ite�s �ith a lesser �alue are e��ensed�

A�ortisation �ethods� esti�ated useful li�es and residual �alues are re�ie�ed at the 
end of each re�orting �eriod and ad�usted �here a��ro�riate� 

Note 1�� �rade and �ther �aya�les

Current

Creditors and Accruals
��� �aya�le
�ay�ents Recei�ed in Ad�ance
�tate �ire Le�y
Annual Lea�e
�ther ���loyee �ntitle�ents

���AL C�RR�N� �RA�� AN� ����R �A�A�L�� ��10�       

2�0�1         
1��            

8�              

���1�       

1�8            

1��            1�8            
2�12�         

2017

��1��         

���2�       ��212       
���2�         

3�              
�0              

3��0�         

3�              

�3���8�        

2018

��212       

88              

8�8�0         

�88��           
�                 

��212         

2018

1�333         
���18         

��000

�1�0���        

��000

��3�3         

2017

�

���2�       

���18         

�2���2�        

Notes

�                 ��1�             
1�2��         

�1�803�        �2���2�        

��212       ���2�       

�age 2�
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Notes to the �inancial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 1�� �rade and �ther �aya�les �continued�

�rade �aya�les are recognised u�on recei�t of the goods or ser�ices ordered� and are �easured at the agreed
�urchase�contract �rice�  A�ounts o�ing are unsecured� and generally settled on 30 day ter�s�

A lia�ility for salaries and �ages is recognised and �easured as the a�ount un�aid at the re�orting date at 
current �ay rates in res�ect of e��loyees� ser�ices u� to that date�  �his lia�ility re�resents an accrued e��ense�

Annual lea�e and other e��loyee entitle�ents are �easured at the �resent �alue of the esti�ated future cash
outflo�s to �e �ade in res�ect of ser�ices �ro�ided �y e��loyees u� to the re�orting date�  �he �alue of the 
current lia�ility is calculated using current �ay rates� e��loyee on�costs� and discounted to �resent �alues�

Council has no o�ligation to �ay sick lea�e on ter�ination of e��loyees�  No lia�ility is recognised for sick lea�e�

�u�erannuation is �aid �ithin three days of a �ay �eriod�  No lia�ility is recognised for su�erannuation�

Note 1�� �orro�ings

Current

Loans � �ueensland �reasury Cor�oration

���AL C�RR�N� ��RR���N��

Non�current

Loans � �ueensland �reasury Cor�oration

���AL N�N�C�RR�N� ��RR���N��

���������������������������������������������
Loans � �ueensland �reasury Cor�oration

��ening �alance at �eginning of �inancial �ear
�rinci�al Re�ay�ents
�ook �alue at end of financial year

�he ��C loan �arket �alue at the re�orting date �as �2��0����8��  �his re�resents the �alue of the de�t if Council
re�aid it at that date�  Council �ade an additional �ay�ent of ���000�000 in the 2018 year� ho�e�er no changes
�ere �ade to the loan ter�� As such no �ro�ision for early re�ay�ent has �een �ade in these accounts�

2018

��000 ��000

1��12         1�3�0         

��000
2017

�2�0�8�        

2����0       

Notes

30�838     

1�3�0       

32���0       

2018
Notes

2��330     

2017

���120�        

2����0     

30�838       

1��12       

��000

3���08       

32���0     

�age 28

68 Lockyer Valley Regional Council



�inancial State�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Notes to the �inancial State�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 1�� �orro�ings �continued�

Loan Disclosures

No assets ha�e �een �ledged as security �y the Council for any lia�ilities�  �o�e�er� all loans are guaranteed �y 
the �ueensland �o�ern�ent�

�orro�ings are initially recognised at fair �alue �lus any directly attri�uta�le transaction costs� Su�se�uent to initial 
recognition these lia�ilities are �easured at a�ortised cost�

All �orro�ings are in �A deno�inated a�ounts and carried at a�ortised cost� interest �eing e��ensed as it
accrues�  No interest has �een ca�italised during the current or co��arati�e re�orting �eriod�  E��ected final 
re�ay�ent dates �ary fro� 1� �arch 2031 to 1� �arch 203��

There ha�e �een no defaults or �reaches of the loan agree�ent during the �eriod�

Princi�al and interest re�ay�ents are �ade �uarterly in arrears� 

In accordance �ith the Local Government Regulation 2012 � Council ado�ts an annual de�t �olicy that sets out
Council�s �lanned �orro�ings for the ne�t nine years�  Council�s current �olicy is to only �orro� for ca�ital 
�ro�ects and for a ter� no longer than the e��ected life of the asset�

Note 18� Pro�isions

Current

Long Ser�ice Lea�e
�uarry Reha�ilitation
Refuse Restoration

TOTAL CURRENT PROVISIONS

Non�Current

Long Ser�ice Lea�e
�uarry Reha�ilitation
Refuse Restoration

TOTAL NON�CURRENT PROVISIONS

Notes ��000

��              

�20            

28���1     

���3�       

2018
��000

2��            

�8              

���            
1���0         

2���2�       

��              

2017

��82�         

28��33     

28�0��       

���3�         

����8       

12              

�age 2�
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Note 18� �ro�isions �continued�

�etails of �o�e�ents in �ro�isions�

Long �er�ice Lea�e
�uarry Reha�ilitation
Refuse Restoration

�ro�isions are �easured at the e��ected cost of the �ork re�uired� discounted to current day �alues using the 
interest rates attaching to Co��on�ealth �o�ern�ent guaranteed securities �ith a �aturity date corres�onding to
the antici�ated date of the �ay�ent�

�uarry reha�ilitation
�he �ro�ision re�resents the �resent �alue of the antici�ated future costs associated �ith the closure of the fi�e
�uarries� refilling the �asin� and recla�ation and reha�ilitation of these sites� �he calculation of this �ro�ision re�uires
assu��tions such as a��lication of en�iron�ental legislation� site closure dates� a�aila�le technologies and 
engineering cost esti�ates� �hese uncertainties �ay result in future actual e��enditure differing fro� a�ounts 
currently �ro�ided� �ecause of the long�ter� nature of the lia�ility� the �ost significant uncertainty in esti�ating
the �ro�ision is the costs that �ill �e incurred� �he �ro�ision recognised for �uarry reha�ilitation is re�ie�ed at least
annually and u�dated �ased on the facts and circu�stances a�aila�le at the ti�e� Restoration costs are already �eing
incurred�

�alaa� �ills �uarry has �een re�o�ed fro� Council�s ��� Licence�  �his has resulted in �onitoring costs 
reducing �y �2�� �illion o�er the reha�ilitation �eriod�

�he �ro�ected cost is ���0���0 and this cost is e��ected to �e incurred �et�een 201� and 20�2�

Refuse restoration
�he �ro�ision re�resents the �resent �alue of the antici�ated future costs associated �ith the closure of the eight
refuse sites� deconta�ination and �onitoring of historical residues and leaching on these sites� �he calculation of this
�ro�ision re�uires assu��tions such as a��lication of en�iron�ental legislation� site closure dates� a�aila�le
technologies and engineering cost esti�ates� �hese uncertainties �ay result in future actual e��enditure differing 
fro� a�ounts currently �ro�ided� �ecause of the long�ter� nature of the lia�ility� the �ost significant uncertainty in
esti�ating the �ro�ision is the costs that �ill �e incurred� �he �ro�ision recognised for refuse sites is re�ie�ed at least
annually and u�dated �ased on the facts and circu�stances a�aila�le at the ti�e� Restoration costs are already
�eing incurred�

�he �ro�ected cost is �2���8���1� and this �ill �e incurred �eriodically fro� 201� to 20��� 

Long �er�ice Lea�e
� lia�ility for long ser�ice lea�e is �easured as the �resent �alue of the esti�ated future cash outflo�s to �e �ade
in res�ect of ser�ices �ro�ided �y e��loyees u� to the re�orting date�  �he �alue of the lia�ility is calculated using
current �ay rates� future �ay increases� e��loyee on�costs� and the �ro�a�ility of the e��loyee re�aining in
Council�s e��loy�ent �hich �ould result in the Council �eing re�uired to �eet the lia�ility� �he interest rates 
attaching to Co��on�ealth �o�ern�ent guaranteed securities at the re�orting date are used to discount the
esti�ated future cash outflo�s to their �resent �alue�

���       
2���22  

�1�1�3�  
28�1��  

33�311  

�            �            
��8��      

��000
�            

��000

�32       1�122    
�32       
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�32       
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Note 18� �ro�isions �continued�

Long �er�ice Lea�e �continued�
�here e��loyees ha�e �et the �rere�uisite length of ser�ice and council does not ha�e an unconditional right to
defer this lia�ility �eyond 12 �onths long ser�ice lea�e is classified as a current lia�ility� �ther�ise it is classified
as non�current�

Note 1�� Asset Re�aluation �ur�lus

�o�e�ents in the asset re�aluation sur�lus:
�alance at �eginning of financial year
������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������
Land
�uildings
Road and �rainage Net�ork
Art�orks
�aste

�alance at end of financial year

Asset re�aluation sur�lus analysis
The closing �alance of the Asset Re�aluation �ur�lus co��rises the follo�ing
asset categories:
Land
�uildings
Road and �rainage Net�ork
Art�orks
�aste

�alance at end of financial year

The asset re�aluation sur�lus co��rises ad�ust�ents relating to changes in �alue of �ro�erty� �lant and e�ui��ent
that do not result fro� the use of those assets�  �ncreases and decreases on re�aluation are offset �ithin a class 
of assets�  Any decreases on re�aluation in e�cess of the asset re�aluation sur�lus are treated as an e��ense�
There are no ad�ust�ents to the asset re�aluation sur�lus on the dis�osal of assets�

218�832   

1����0       

213�0�3   

1��312       
8                �                 

�                 

����8��        

��000

���8�8�        

Notes

�1�3�2�        

13

2017

800            
�21            

1��120       
213�0�3   

�                 
12�            

1�2�8�3     

�20            

1���11       
��00�         

2018

�                 �20            

218�832     

12�            

201��12     

��000

��8�3         
1�1��81     

218�832   
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Note 20� Retained �ur�lus

�o�e�ents in the retained sur�lus:

�����������������������������������������������

Net Result �ttri�uta�le to Council

Restricted Ca�ital �orks Reser�e � �rants � �u�sidies
�ark ���ro�e�ents Reser�e
Roads �nfrastructure Reser�e
Road�orks ��tracti�e �ndustry Reser�e
Roads � �ro�erty �ccess Reser�e

Rates Le�ies Reser�e
�re�aid �rants Reser�e

����������������
�ro�erty �lant � ��ui��ent Recognised for the �irst �i�e
�n�est�ent in �ssociated �ntities Recognised for the �irst �i�e

Retained sur�lus at end of financial year

�1�3�           

1�120         

380�111   

3����1�     

3�����1   

21

38

�1���           

11�012       

3�����1     

��000

��0            

�������������������������������������������������������������������������
���������������������������������������������������������

Notes

����������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������������������������������ 21

�                 
8��1�         

2�0��         

2018 2017

�                 

��000

�                 

�81�             

����1         

12�            

�2              ��              

�118�           ��              
��8            

�                 

3�2            
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Note 21� Reser�es

Council�s Cash� Cash ��ui�alents and �n�est�ents are su��ect to a nu��er of ��ternal and �nternal Restrictions
that li�it the a�ount that is a�aila�le for discretionary or future use�  
�n �rior years� Council accounted for these Restrictions using a syste� of Reser�es�

�����������������������������������������������������
�his corres�onds to the a�ount of cash �hich has �een recei�ed in res�ect of ca�ital �orks �here the re�uired
ca�ital �orks ha�e not yet �een carried out�

����������������������������
�his re�resents the future de�elo��ent of roads across the region fro� s�ecific contri�utions�

����������������������������y��������
�his re�resents the future de�elo��ent of roads used �y e�tracti�e industry o�erators fro� �oluntary contri�utions�

��������������������
�his re�resents the uns�ent funds fro� the ��ergency �re�aredness� Rural �ire and �aste �anage�ent Le�ies�
�hese funds �ill �ro�ide disaster �anage�ent� ���� rural fire� en�iron�ental and �aste functions as needed�

����������������������
�his corres�onds to the a�ount of cash �hich has �een recei�ed in res�ect of o�erational �orks �here the
re�uired o�erations ha�e not yet �een carried out�

Reser�es held for funding future ca�ital e��:
Restricted Ca�ital �orks Reser�e � �rants � �u�sidies
Roads �nfrastructure Reser�e
Road�orks ��tracti�e �ndustry Reser�e

2����         

��000Notes ��000

��838       

20172018

321            128            
���38         

�                 �2              
2�88�       

�age 33
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Note 21� Reser�es �continued�

Reser�es held for funding future recurrent e��:

Rates Le�ies Reser�e
�re�aid �rants Reser�e

TOTAL RESERVES

�o�e�ents in reser�es:

����������������
Restricted Ca�ital �orks Reser�e � �rants � Su�sidies
Roads �nfrastructure Reser�e
Road�orks E�tracti�e �ndustry Reser�e
����������������������

������������������
Rates Le�ies Reser�e
�re�aid �rants Reser�e
������������������������

��������������

2018

�3              

O�ening 
�alance 

as at 
01�0��201�

Tfr to 
Retained 

Sur�lus
��000

�3         118       

�            

1��       

3�8          
1�1            

�            

128       �            
���38    

��2�        
��838    

�2�0���  

�            

�2�1���  

31�       

1��       

��881    

�2         
�2�1���  

��881       

�08       3�2�3    

3�8       

��000

1�1       

1�3       

�            

1��            

��000 ��000
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Note 22� Co��it�ents for ���enditure

�a� Ca�ital Co��it�ents �e�clusi�e of ����

Ca�ital e��enditure co��itted for at the re�orting date �ut not recognised in the financial state�ents 
as lia�ilities�

Property� Plant and ��uipment
�acility� �uildings� �lant and ��ui��ent ���enditure
Road ��erations � �ridge Construction
Total Commitments

T�ese e�penditures are payable as follo�s:
�ithin the ne�t year
Total Payable

Sources for Funding of Capital Commitments:
Restricted Reser�es
Total Sources of Funding

��� Contractual co��it�ents

Contractual co��it�ents at end of financial year �ut not recognised in the financial state�ents are 
as follo�s�

�ar�age Collection Contract
�aste �ite �u�er�ision Contract
Co��uter Leasing Contract

2����         
2����       

1�0�3         
���            
�31            

1����       

2����         

1���3�     
2��            

��2�2         

2����       
1����         

��3�2         

1����       

1���22     
�13            

1����       2����       

��3�1         

1��01         

8��3�         

Notes
20172018

��000 ��000

1����         
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�ote 23� Contingent Lia�ilitie�

�etail� and e�ti�ate� of �a�i�u� a�ount� of contingent lia�ilitie� are a� follo���

Local �o�ern�ent �utual

�he Council i� a �e��er of the local go�ern�ent �utual lia�ility �elf�in�urance �ool� L�� �ueen�land� �n the 
e�ent of the �ool �eing �ound u� or it i� una�le to �eet it� de�t� a� they fall due� the tru�t deed and rule� 
�ro�ide that any accu�ulated deficit �ill �e �et �y the indi�idual �ool �e��er� in the �a�e �ro�ortion a� their 
contri�ution i� to the total �ool contri�ution� in re��ect to any year that a deficit ari�e�� 

�� at 30 June 201�� the financial �tate�ent� re�orted an accu�ulated �ur�lu� totalling ��0��21�28��  �t i� not 
antici�ated any lia�ility �ill ari�e�

Local �o�ern�ent �orkcare

�he Council i� a �e��er of the �ueen�land local go�ern�ent �orker�� co��en�ation �elf�in�urance �che�e� 
Local �o�ern�ent �orkcare�  �nder thi� �che�e the Council ha� �ro�ided an inde�nity to�ard� a �ank 
guarantee to co�er �ad de�t� �hich �ay re�ain �hould the �elf in�urance licence �e cancelled and there �a� 
in�ufficient fund� a�aila�le to co�er out�tanding lia�ilitie��  �nly the �ueen�land �o�ern�ent�� �orker� 
co��en�ation authority �ay call on any �art of the guarantee �hould the a�o�e circu��tance� ari�e� �he 
Council�� �a�i�u� e��o�ure to the �ank guarantee i� ���0�2���

�he late�t audited financial �tate�ent� for Local �o�ern�ent �orkcare are a� at 30 June 201� and �ho�
accu�ulated �e��er fund� �e�uity� of ��0�30��803�

Legal Clai��

�he Council i� a defendant� or �ay �e called u�on to defend clai�� that ari�e� a� a re�ult of o�eration� of the
Council and o�ner�hi� of �u�lic a��et��

Council i� currently defending a legal clai� �efore the court� �here the clai�ed a�ount i� not finally calculated�
�ut i� in e�ce�� of �2�2 �illion� �ince the �roceeding �a� co��enced� the ���licant ha� a�ended it� clai�
on three occa�ion� in re��on�e to �trike�out a��lication� �y Council� and the a�ount clai�ed ha� 
�ignificantly decrea�ed fro� the original �2� �illion �ought �y the ���licant� �o �u��tanti�e �te�� ha�e �een taken
�y the ���licant to �ur�ue thi� �roceeding� and only tho�e �te�� �hich �ill kee� the �roceeding �li�e� in accordance
�ith the Court Rule� ha�e no� �een taken�  Council i� of the o�inion that if thi� clai� i� �rogre��ed it 
can �e �ucce��fully defended�

����������
        Council

�age 3�

76 Lockyer Valley Regional Council



�inancial �tate�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

�otes to the �inancial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

�ote 23� Contingent Lia�ilities �continued�

Council is currently defending or has recei�ed three insurance clai�s �hich are currently �eing �rogressed �y or in
consultation �ith Council�s insurer� �hese clai�s relate to �ersonal in�ury or da�age to third �arty infrastructure
�a��ro�i�ately ���000��  �he �alance are clai�s rele�ant to �ro�erty alleged to �e caused �y Council �orks on 
Council roads or foot�aths�  �n insurance e�cess of �1��000 �er clai� a��lies to the �a�ority of these clai�s�

Council is also a�are of the follo�ing �otential lia�ility risks�

�e�en Council assets ha�e not �een �ro�erly constructed �y a �articular contractor and no� �resent
risk to further lia�ility to Council� �te�s ha�e �een taken to resol�e these issues �ith the contractor �ut this
�rocess has �een frustrated� �t is considered that Council is unlikely to reco�er any rectification costs fro� the
contractor� �hich are e��ected to �e in e�cess of �� �illion� Council �ill incur out of �ocket costs to rectify
the construction issues and �ay ha�e lia�ility to third �arties in the e�ent of any of these assets failing�

�nfor�ation in res�ect of any indi�idual clai�s has not �een disclosed in accordance �ith ����13� ��ro�isions�
Contingent Lia�ilities and Contingent �ssets� on the �asis that Council considers such disclosures �ay seriously
�re�udice the outco�e of the clai��

�ote 2�� �u�erannuation

Council conti�utes to the L���su�er Regional �efined �enefits �und �the sche�e�� at the rate of 12� for each 
�er�anent e��loyee �ho is a defined �enefit �e��er� �his rate is set in accordance �ith the L���su�er trust 
deed and �ay �e �aried on the ad�ice of an actuary� �he Regional �efined �enefits �und is a co��lying 
su�erannuation sche�e for the �ur�ose of the Co��on�ealth �u�erannuation �ndustry ��u�er�ision� legislation 
and is also go�erned �y the Local Government Act 2009 �

�he sche�e is a defined �enefit �lan� ho�e�er Council is not a�le to account for it as a defined �enefit �lan in 
accordance �ith ����11� �ecause L���su�er is una�le to account for its �ro�ortionate share of the defined 
�enefit o�ligation� �lan assets and costs� 

�ny a�ount �y �hich the sche�e is o�er or under funded �ay affect future �enefits and result in a change to the 
contri�ution rate� �ut has not �een recognised as an asset or lia�ility of the Council� 

�echnically Council can �e lia�le to the sche�e for a �ortion of another local go�ern�ents� o�ligations should 
that local go�ern�ent �e una�le to �eet the�� �o�e�er the risk of this occurring is e�tre�ely lo� and in
accordance �ith the L���su�er trust deed�

�he last co��leted actuarial assess�ent of the sche�e �as undertaken as at 1 July 201�� �he actuary indicated 
that ��t the �aluation date of 1 July 201�� the net assets of the sche�e e�ceeded the �ested �enefits and the 
sche�e �as in a satisfactory financial �osition as at the �aluation date�� �he Council is not a�are of anything 
that has ha��ened since that ti�e that indicates the assets of the sche�e are not sufficient to �eet the �ested 
�enefits� as at the re�orting date�

        Council
����� �����

�age 3�
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Note 2�� �u�erannuation �continued�

No changes ha�e �een �ade to �rescri�ed e��loyer contri�utions �hich re�ain at 12� of e��loyee assets and 
there are no kno�n re�uire�ents to change the rate of contri�utions�

�nother actuarial in�estigation is �eing conducted as at 1 July 2018� �t the ti�e of signing these financial 
state�ents this in�estigation is still in �rogress�

�he �ost significant risks that �ay result in L���su�er increasing the contri�ution rate� on the ad�ice of the 
actuary� are�

�n�est�ent risk � �he risk that the sche�e�s in�est�ent returns �ill �e lo�er than assu�ed and additional 
contri�utions are needed to fund the shortfall� 

�alary gro�th risk � �he risk that �ages or salaries �ill rise �ore ra�idly than assu�ed� increasing
�ested �enefits to �e funded�

�here are currently �3 entities contri�uting to the sche�e and any changes in contri�ution rates �ould a��ly 
e�ually to all �3 entities� Council �ade less than �� of the total contri�utions to the �lan in the 201��18 
financial year�

�u�erannuation contri�utions �ade to the Regional �efined �enefits �und
�ther su�erannuation contri�utions for e��loyees
�otal su�erannuation contri�utions �aid �y Council for e��loyees

Contri�utions council e��ects to �ake to the Regional �efined �enefits �und for 2018�1�

�

Notes

2����       2��8�       
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�ote 2�� Associated Entities

Council�s o��ecti�es can and in so�e cases are �est �et through the use of se�arate entities and o�erations�

�hese o�erations and entities range fro� 100� o�nershi� and control through to lo�er le�els of o�nershi�
and control �ia co�o�erati�e arrange�ents �ith other Councils� �odies and other �utside �rganisations�

�he accounting and re�orting for these �arious entities� o�erations and arrange�ents �aries in accordance
�ith accounting standards� de�ending on the le�el of Councils �i� interest and �ii� control and the ty�e �for�� of
entity�o�eration� as follo�s�

Associate� �ntities Note 34(b)
Arrange�ents in the for� of a Se�arate Entity that de�loys the resources of the o�eration itself�
�nder Associated Entities� Council significantly influences the o�erations �ut does not control the��

Accounting Recognition:
Associate� �ntities are accounte� for using the ��uit� Accounting Metho� an� are �isclose� as a one line entr�
in the Statement of Com�rehensi�e Income an� Statement of �inancial �osition

Associated Entities
Total

Associated Entitites

Council has incor�orated the follo�ing Associated Entities into its �inancial State�ents�

(a) Net Carr�ing Amounts � Council's Share
Nature of Measurement

Name of �ntit� Relationshi� Metho�

Total Carr�ing Amounts � Associate� �ntities

Council of �ayors South East �ueensland Shareholder E�uity 
Accounting

Shareholder E�uity 
Accounting ��                 �2                 

�ueensland �r�an �tilities Shareholder E�uity 
Accounting 2���1�          2�����          

SE� Regional Recreational �acilities �ty 
Ltd

�'000 �'000
2018 2017

2�1               202               

2��740          30�273          

Council's Share of Net Income  

�'000
2018 2017

Council's Share of Net Assets  
2018 2017

30�273            

�'000

2��740            
2����0            

2�328              
2�328              

�'000�'000
2�331              30�2�3            
2�331              

�age 3�
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�ote 2�� Associated �ntities �continued�

(b) Details

Name of �ntity Principal Acti�ity

(c) Rele�ant Interests and Fair �alues

Name of �ntity

(d) Summarised Financial Information for Associated �ntities

Summarised Statement of Financial Position

Current Assets
Cash and Cash ��ui�alents
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Non�Current Assets

Current Liabilities
Other Current Lia�ilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non�Current Liabilities

Net Assets

Reconciliation of the Carrying Amount
O�ening �et Assets �1 July�
�rofit��Loss� for the �eriod
�istri�utions Recei�ed
Closing Net Assets

��� Regional Recreational Facilities �ty Ltd

��� Regional Recreational Facilities �ty Ltd

2���1�       2�����       
�1���8�        �1��82�        

2�����       28�323       
2�23�         2��3�         

�������00  ��2���220  

2�2�0�300  

2018

�ueensland �rban �tilities

2017

1���88�     
��000

212�0��     
331�000     38�����     

�uoted Interest in Interest in Proportion of
Fair �alue �utputs ��nership �oting Po�er

20172018 20172018
��

2018 2017 2017
��A ��A �� �� ��

Recreational Facilities �ris�ane
�ueensland �r�an �tilities �ater and �aste �ater �anage�ent �ris�ane
Council of �ayors �outh �ast �ueensland Ad�ocacy �ris�ane

��000
131��00     

���1��300  ���10��12  

301��00     30��12�     

�usiness
Place of

2018

30��12�     301��00     

2�22��32�  

13�13�

20� 20�
Council of �ayors �outh �ast �ueensland ��A ��A �� �� �� �� �� ��

1� 1��ueensland �r�an �tilities ��A ��A 1� 1�

1����00     

�age �0
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�ote 2�� ���ociated �ntitie� �continued�

��������������������������������������������

�nco�e
�e�reciation and ��orti�ation
�ntere�t ���en�e
�nco�e �a� ���en�e
�ther ���en�e�
������������������������

�ther Co��rehen�i�e �nco�e
��������������������������

�i�idend� recei�ed �y Council

������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�n addition to the ���ociated �ntitie� di�clo�ed indi�idually a�o�e� Council ha� intere�t� in t�o indi�idually 
i��aterial ���ociated �ntitie� that are accounted for u�ing the ��uity �ethod�

�ndi�idually ���aterial ���ociate�

���������������������������������������������������������������

���������������������������������������������������������������������������
�rofit��Lo��� fro� Continuing ��eration�
��������������������������������������������������������������� �2              �8              

3��            2��            

�2              �8              

��000 ��000
2018 2017

1���8         1�0��         

2������     2�1�8�8     

2������     2�1����     

�                 3��            

�10��2�2�    �12��381�    
��10��30�    ��8������    

�183�32��    �1�8�0�3�    
����02��      ������1�      

1�3����8�  1�382�101  

��������������������������

2018 2017
��000 ��000

�age �1

81Annual Report 2017–2018



   �inancial State�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Notes to the �inancial State�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 2�� Trust �unds

Trust funds held for outside �arties

Security �e�osits

The Council �erfor�s only a custodial role in res�ect of these �onies� �s these funds 
cannot �e used �y the Council� they are not �rought to account in these financial 
state�ents�

Note 2�� Reconciliation of Net Result for the year to Net
Cash fro� ��erating �cti�ities

Net result

�d�ust for Non�cash ite�s
�e�reciation and ��ortisation

Losses��Gains� recognised on fair �alue re��easure�ents through the ��L

�n�inding of �iscount Rates on Reinstate�ent �ro�isions
�rite �ffs relating to the �air Valuation of �ro�erty� �lant and ��ui��ent

In�esting and de�elo��ent acti�ities
Net Losses��Gains� on �is�osal of �ssets
Ca�ital Grants

Ca�ital Contri�utions

Changes in o�erating assets and lia�ilities�
�Increase���ecrease in Recei�a�les
Increase���ecrease� in �ro�ision for �ou�tful �e�ts
�Increase���ecrease in In�entories
Increase���ecrease� in �aya�les and �ccruals
Increase���ecrease� in �ther Lia�ilities
Increase���ecrease� in ���loyee Lea�e �ntitle�ents
Increase���ecrease� in �ther �ro�isions

Net cash fro� ��erating �cti�ities

2018 2017
Notes

2018 2017

�                 

�2�328�        

����1       

��000

1�328         1��10         

��000

�3�               

1�328       1��10       

12����       

11�012     

�32            
�1�2�           
���            

�                 

12�883       

�2�331�        

�3��             

22�            

��1            

�8�811�      

21              

82              

3����         

�2�          

1����3     

��8          

���1���        

���222�        

1��211     

�3��0��        

�120�         

�8�          

�3���1�        

In�est�ent �ro�erties

Share of Net ��rofits��Losses of �ssociates

����30�      

�2��             
1                

�33            

�31�             

�12��           

�                 

�����           

18              
��              

12�883     12����     

3�8��         

�age �2
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Lockyer Valley Regional Council

�otes to the Financial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

�ote 28� Reconciliation of Lia�ilities arising fro� Finance �cti�ities

Loans

�ote 2�� ��ents �ccurring �fter �alance �heet �ate

Council is una�are of any �aterial or significant e�ents occuring after �alance date that should �e disclosed�

�ote 30� Financial �nstru�ents

Council has e��osure to the follo�ing risks arising fro� financial instru�ents� (i) interest rate risk� (ii) credit risk�
and (iii) li�uidity risk�

�his note �ro�ides infor�ation ��oth �ualitati�e and �uantitati�e� to assist state�ent users to e�aluate the 
significance of financial instru�ents on the Council�s financial �osition and financial �erfor�ance�
including the nature and e�tent of risks and ho� the Council �anages these e��osures�

Financial Risk Manage�ent

Council is res�onsi�le for the esta�lish�ent and re�ie� of the risk �anage�ent fra�e�ork� together �ith 
de�elo�ing and �onitoring risk �anage�ent �olicies� 

Council�s �udit and Risk Manage�ent Co��ittee has o�ersight of �olicies for o�erall risk �anage�ent�

�he Council�s risk �anage�ent �olicies are esta�lished to identify and analyse the risks faced� to set a��ro�riate 
li�its and controls and to �onitor these risks and adherence against li�its� �he Council ai�s to �anage �olatility
to �ini�ise �otential ad�erse effects on the financial �erfor�ance of the Council�

Council does not enter into deri�ati�es�

Credit Risk ���osure

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a counter�arty to a financial instru�ent fails to �eet its contractual 
o�ligations� �hese o�ligations arise �rinci�ally fro� the Council�s in�est�ents and recei�a�les fro� custo�ers�

���osure to credit risk is �anaged through regular analysis of credit counter�arty a�ility to �eet �ay�ent 
o�ligations� �he carrying a�ount of financial assets re�resents the �a�i�u� credit e��osure�

�n�est�ents in financial instru�ents are re�uired to �e �ade �ith �ueensland �reasury Cor�oration ���C� or 
si�ilar �tate�Co��on�ealth �odies or financial institutions in �ustralia� in line �ith the re�uire�ents of the 
Statutory Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982.

�o collateral is held as security relating to the financial assets held �y the Council�

����un���ChangesCash�lo�s����un���
As at�on�CashAs at

��������������������

2��330       
32���0     ���120�      �               2��330     

���120�        32���0       

        Council

�                 

�age �3
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�otes to the Financial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

�ote 30� Financial �nstru�ents �continued�

The follo�ing ta�le re�resents the �a�i�u� e��osure to credit risk �ased on the 
carrying a�ounts of financial assets at the end of the re�orting �eriod�

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash ��ui�alents
�n�est�ent �ecurities
Recei�a�les � Rates
Recei�a�les � �ther

�ther Credit ���osures
Guarantee

Total

�������������������������
The Council �ay �e e��osed to credit risk through its in�est�ents in the �TC Cash Fund and �TC �orking Ca�ital 
Facility� The �TC Cash Fund is an asset �anage�ent �ortfolio that in�ests �ith a �ide range of high credit rated 
counter�arties�   �e�osits �ith the �TC Cash Fund are ca�ital guaranteed� �orking Ca�ital Facility de�osits ha�e 
a duration of one day and all in�est�ents are re�uired to ha�e a �ini�u� credit rating of �A��� therefore the 
likelihood of the counter�arty ha�ing ca�acity to �eet its financial co��it�ents is strong�

����������������������
�ther in�est�ents are held �ith financial institutions� �hich are rated AA� to ���� �ased on rating agency
�tandard and �oors ratings� and �hilst not ca�ital guaranteed� the likelihood of a credit failure is assessed
as re�ote�

���������������������������
�n the case of rate recei�a�les� the Council has the �o�er to sell the �ro�erty to reco�er any defaulted a�ounts�  
�n effect this �o�er �rotects the Council against credit risk in the case of defaults�

�n other cases� the Council assesses the credit risk �efore �ro�iding goods or ser�ices and a��lies nor�al �usiness 
credit �rotection �rocedures to �ini�ise the risk�

�y the nature of the Councils o�erations� there is a geogra�hical concentration of risk in the Council�s area�  
�ecause the area is largely residential and agricultural� there is also a concentration in the residential and
agricultural sectors�

� 10���3       ����1         

2�0�0         

���008     �����1     

1�����       10

��0          

1���00       �
10

23 ���            

����11     

��0            
���          

�����1     
1��1�0       

2��22         
1��200       

2018 2017
��000 ��000

�age ��
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   �inancial �tate�ents 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Notes to the �inancial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 30� �inancial �nstru�ents �continued�

�geing of �ast due recei�a�les and the a�ount of any i��air�ent is disclosed in the follo�ing ta�le:

Recei�a�les

�ully Perfor�ing
Past due:
� 30 to �0 days o�erdue
� �1 to �0 days o�erdue
� ��er �0 days
� ���aired

Total

Li�uidity Risk

Li�uidity risk refers to the situation �here the Council �ay encounter difficulty in �eeting o�ligations associated 
�ith financial lia�ilities that are settled �y deli�ering cash or another financial asset�  The Council is e��osed to 
li�uidity risk through its trading in the nor�al course of �usiness and �orro�ings fro� the �ueensland Treasury 
Cor�oration for ca�ital �orks�

Council �anages its e��osure to li�uidity risk �y �aintaining sufficient cash de�osits and undra�n facilities� �oth
short and long ter�� to cater for une��ected �olatility in cash flo�s�  These facilities are disclosed in Note 1��

The follo�ing ta�le sets out the li�uidity risk in relation to financial lia�ilities held �y the Council� �t re�resents the 
re�aining contractual cashflo�s ��rinci�al and interest� of financial lia�ilities at the end of the re�orting �eriod� 
e�cluding the i��act of netting agree�ents:

Trade and �ther Paya�les
Loans � �TC

Trade and �ther Paya�les
Loans � �TC

The outflo�s in the a�o�e ta�le are not e��ected to occur significantly earlier and are not e��ected to �e for 
significantly different a�ounts than indicated in the ta�le�

22��08       

2017

�����         

��000 ��000 ��000  ��000 

30�0��     

0 to 1 year

10

10���3       
10���3     

30�0��       3�08�         

��13�       

1����8     1��210     

��000

221            

��000 

Carrying 
��ount

�����         

12�3�3     
12�3�3       

3�822         

Total 
Contractual 
Cash �lo�s

�����         

Notes

��er � years1 to � years

���11       

1����2       

���               
112            

2���0         
�                 �                 

3�822         

2018

22��08     

2018

1                

�0��00     
2��330       

��              
�                

����88       

18����       

��000

83              

�                 �                 

3��2�2     ���310     

3�822         
32���0       

30�82�     
201�

�3�               

3��101       

�age ��
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�otes to the �inancial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

�ote 30� �inancial Instru�ents �continued�

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in �arket �rices� such as interest rates� �ill affect the Council�s inco�e or the 
�alue of its holdings of financial instru�ents�

Interest Rate Risk

�he Council is e��osed to interest rate risk through in�est�ents and �orro�ings �ith �ueensland �reasury
and other financial institutions�

�he Council has access to a �i� of �aria�le and fi�ed rate funding o�tions through ��C so that interest rate 
risk e��osure can �e �ini�ised�

�ensiti�ity to interest rate �o�e�ents is sho�n for �aria�le financial assets and lia�ilities �ased on the carrying 
a�ount at re�orting date� 

�he follo�ing interest rate sensiti�ity analysis de�icts �hat effect a reasona�ly �ossi�le change in interest rates 
�assu�ed to �e 1�� �ould ha�e on the �rofit and e�uity� �ased on the carrying �alues at the end of the re�orting 
�eriod� �he calculation assu�es that the change in interest rates �ould �e held constant o�er the �eriod�

��C Cash �und
�ther In�est�ents
Loans � ��C
Net

��C Cash �und
�ther In�est�ents
Loans � ��C
Net

In relation to the ��C loans held �y the Council� the follo�ing has �een a��lied�

��C �eneric �e�t �ool � the generic de�t �ool �roducts a��ro�i�ate a fi�ed rate loan� �here is a negligi�le i��act 
on interest sensiti�ity fro� changes in interest rates for generic de�t �ool �orro�ings�

���unt �� in�rease �� �e�rease �� in�rease �� �e�rease

��2�           
�32��           32�            

��              
�1�2�           1�2            �1�2�           

�8��             

�����

2�3            
1�            

�2            

��uity

�1��           

�183�           
32�            

����             

Net Result

����� ����� �����

2�3            

183            

1�            
�2�3�           

�8��             

�2            

�183�           183            

Net Carrying

�����

18�3�1       

201�

2018
���33         

1��200       

�32���0�      

8�              

�2��330�      �2�3�           
�1��           

���20��      ��2�           

8��00         8�              

�1�3���      

�32��           

1�2            
��              ����             

�age ��
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Notes to the Financial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 30� Financial �nstru�ents �continued�

Fair Value

�he fair �alue of trade and other recei�a�les and �aya�les is assu�ed to a��ro�i�ate the �alue of the original 
transaction� less any allo�ance for i��air�ent� 

�he fair �alue of �orro�ings �ith ��C is �ased on the �arket �alue of de�t outstanding� �he �arket �alue of a de�t 
o�ligation is the discounted �alue of future cash flo�s �ased on �re�ailing �arket rates and re�resents the a�ount 
re�uired to �e re�aid if this �as to occur at �alance date� �he �arket �alue of de�t is �ro�ided �y ��C and is 
discussed �elo�� disclosed in Note 1��

��C a��lies a �ook rate a��roach in the �anage�ent of de�t and interest rate risk� to li�it the i��act of �arket 
�alue �o�e�ents to clients� cost of funding� �he �ook �alue re�resents the carrying �alue �ased on a�ortised cost 
using the effecti�e interest �ethod�

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash ��ui�alents
�n�est�ents
� ��eld to �aturity�
Recei�a�les
Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Paya�les
Loans � �d�ances
Total Financial Liabilities

2��0�8       

����2�       

1���00       
20��82       
1��200       

������       
1���1�       

��10�         
3��8��       

���1�         

2017

����2�       

�1��8�       

��10�         

�

���1�         

         �a���in� �al�e
2017

����1         

��000

       Fai� �al�e

��000

10���3       

2018

3�����       
32���0       
38����       

10���3       

������       
10 20��82       

1�
33�0��       
2��330       

����1         

1���00       
1���1�       

1�

�

Notes

�

2018
��000

1��200       

��000

�age ��
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�otes to the Financial �tate�ents
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

�ote 31� �ransactions �ith Related Parties

�a� Associates

�ransactions �it� Associates

�ueensland �r�an �tilities
� �ater � �aste �ater Charges
� Ado�ted �nfrastructure Charges
� ��onsorshi� Recei�ed
� Contri�ution to �ater Colla�orati�e
� Pri�ate �orks for ���
� Council �e�elo��ent Costs
Council of Mayors Sout� �ast �ueensland
� Annual �e��ershi� Le�y
� ��� Oly��ic �id
� ��� Regional Food and Agriculture �ouris� Platfor�
� Resilient Ri�ers �nitiati�es
Spring �luff �ail�ay Station
� O�erational Contri�ution
� Ad�ertising Recei�ed

All of the a�o�e transactions �ere in the nor�al course of �usiness� and su��ect to standard ter�s and conditions�

��� Other Related Parties

�ransactions �it� �t�er �elated Parties

� Printing
� �rans�ort �er�ices

� �otor Vehicles
� �arth�o�ing �er�ices

All of the a�o�e transactions �ere in the nor�al course of �usiness� and su��ect to standard ter�s and conditions�

Any contracts �ith related �arties ha�e follo�ed nor�al �rocure�ent and tender �rocesses�

�ey �anage�ent �ersonnel ha�e disclosed any �ersonal interest in relation to decision �aking around these
transactions� or a�sented the�sel�es fro� the decision �aking �rocess�  �i�ilar transactions ha�e occurred in
�re�ious years� �rior to the election or e��loy�ent of �ey �anage�ent Personnel�

1�              
�                

�132�           

��              
�1�               

��1            

2018

3��            
�                 

���               

�30�             
18�            

31              

�33�             

33            
�              

Amount of
transactions
during year

��000

��              
10              

2018

�3            
1��23       

�                 
33              
88              

Purc�ase of �oods � Ser�ices from entities controlled �y related parties of �ey 
Management Personnel

1��3�         

Purc�ase of �oods � Ser�ices from entities controlled �y �ey Management 
Personnel

��000

transactions
during year

Amount of

2017

1�038         

��            
�1�             

�1            

30            
1�            

3��          

18�          
�22�           

�              

3�3          

���             
�               

Amount of
transactions
during year

��000
2017
��000

transactions
during year

Amount of

��000 ��000
2016

�age �8
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�ote� to the �inancial �tate�ent�
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

�ote 31� Tran�action� �ith Related �artie� �continued�

�c� �ey Manage�ent �er�onnel

������������������������������������������
�ey Manage�ent �er�onnel include the Councillor�� Chief ��ecuti�e �fficer� ��ecuti�e Manager��
the Manager of �inance � Cu�to�er �er�ice� and the Manager of �lanning� �ther �taff acting in tho�e �o�ition� 
during the year ha�e al�o �een included for the �eriod of ti�e they �ere acting�

The co��en�ation �aid to �ey Manage�ent �er�onnel co��ri�e��

�hort�Ter� ���loyee �enefit�
�o�t����loy�ent �enefit�
Long�Ter� �enefit�
Total

�d� �ut�tanding �alance�

Council hold� no contract retention� �201�� ����2�� on �ehalf of a related �arty� Thi� �a� for the co��letion of
tendered �ork��

�ncluded in the �alance� di�clo�ed at �a� i� an a�ount of �8���� �201�� �1���10� �hich �a� out�tanding at year end� 
Thi� i� in accordance �ith Council�� nor�al de�t collection and creditor �ay�ent ter���

�ncluded in the �alance� di�clo�ed at ��� i� an a�ount of ��� �201�� �3��1��� �hich �a� out�tanding at year end� 
Thi� i� in accordance �ith Council�� nor�al creditor �ay�ent ter���

�e� Loan� and �uarantee� to�fro� Related �artie�
Council hold� no �ank guarantee� �201�� �2����0� on �ehalf of a related �arty� Thi� �a� for co��letion of
tendered �ork��

Council ha� �ro�ided a loan to ��� for �1��� �illion �201�� �1��� �illion��  Thi� i� �anaged �y �ueen�land Trea�ury 
Cor�oration� Thi� loan i� at co��ercial intere�t rate�� and the ca�acity for ��� to re�ay thi� loan i� a��e��ed yearly�
Thi� loan i� di�clo�ed at �ote 10�

�f� Co��it�ent� to�fro� �ther Related �artie�
There are no co��it�ent� at the end of the re�orting �eriod in relation to tran�action� �ith related �artie��

�g� Tran�action� �ith Related �artie� that ha�e not �een di�clo�ed
Tran�action� �ithin the nor�al cour�e of Council �u�ine�� �ith the related �artie� ha�e not �een di�clo�ed a� they are
on the �a�e �a�i� a� ordinary citi�en�� The�e tran�action� include rate� �ay�ent for �ro�ertie� o�ned �ithin Council
�oundarie�� dog regi�tration�� and rei��ur�e�ent of e��en�e� for �arking and conference��

There are three related �artie� �hich are e��loyee� of Council �ut not �ey Manage�ent �er�onnel� Their e��loy�ent
ter�� and condition� are in accordance �ith Council�� �nter�ri�e �argaining �gree�ent and �tandard recruit�ent
�ractice� and therefore ha�e not �een di�clo�ed�

2016
��000 ��000

2�0��       
1�            

2018
�000

2�3�3         
2�8            

1�              
2��3�       

2017
�000

1�838       
1�3          

�age ��
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�ote 32� Council Infor�ation and Contact �etails

�rincipal �lace o� ��siness:
2� Rail�ay Street
�atton �L� �3�3

Contact Details
�ailin� ���ress: �penin� �o�rs:
�� �o� 82 8�30a� � ��30�� � �atton
�atton �L� �3�3 ��00a� � ��00�� � Laidley

Monday to Friday

Telephone: 1300 00� 8�2 Internet:
��ail:

���icers �lecte� �e��ers
C�I�� ���C�TI�� ���IC�� �����
Ian Church Tanya Milligan

C���CI�����
Jason Cook

��DIT��� Chris �ilson
�ueensland �udit �ffice Janice �olstein
�� �o� 1�3�� Rick Vela
City �ast �L� �002 �athy McLean

Michael �agan

�ther In�or�ation
���: �2 ��3 1�� 312

�ail�o��l�rc��ld�go��au
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Councillors of Lockyer Valley Regional Council 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
Opinion 

I have audited the financial report of Lockyer Valley Regional Council.  

In my opinion, the financial report: 

a) gives a true and fair view of the council’s financial position as at 30 June 2018, and of 
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended 

b) complies with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation 2012 
and Australian Accounting Standards. 

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the certificate given by the Mayor 
and Chief Executive Officer. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing 
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial report section of my report. 

I am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in 
Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code 
and the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Other information 

Other information comprises the information included in Lockyer Valley Regional Council’s 
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2018, but does not include the financial report and 
my auditor’s report thereon. At the date of this auditor’s report, the other information was the 
current year financial sustainability statement, long-term financial sustainability statement 
and the annual report. 

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly I do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. However, as required by the Local 
Government Regulation 2012, I have expressed a separate opinion on the current year 
financial sustainability statement. 

  

 
In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the council for the financial report 

The council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation 
2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the council 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

The council is also responsible for assessing the council's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the council or to otherwise cease 
operations.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
this financial report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the council's internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Councillors of Lockyer Valley Regional Council 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
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 Conclude on the appropriateness of the council's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the council's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I 
am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. I base my 
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the council to cease to continue as a 
going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my audit. 

In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2018 

a) I received all the information and explanations I required. 

b) In my opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping 
of accounts were complied with in all material respects. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Melissa Read 

 
 
 
 
 

18 September 2018 
Queensland Audit Office 

as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane 
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   Financial Statements 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Measures of Financial Sustainability

Council's performance at 30 June 2018 against key financial ratios and targets.

Performance Indicators

1. Operating Surplus Ratio
Net Result (excluding capital items) (1)

Total Operating Revenue (excluding capital items) (2)

An indicator of the extent to which revenues raised cover 
operational expenses only or are available for capital funding 
purposes or other purposes.

2. Asset Sustainability Ratio
Capital Expenditure on the Replacement of Assets (renewals) (3)

Depreciation Expense

An approximation of the extent to which the infrastructure assets 
managed are being replaced as these reach the end of their useful 
lives.

3. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Total Liabilities less Current Assets
Total Operating Revenue (excluding capital items) (2)

An indicator of the extent to which the net financial liabilities can 
be serviced by its operating revenue.

Note 1 - Basis of Preparation

The current year financial sustainability statement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Government Regulation 2012  and the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline
2013. The amounts used to calculate the three reported measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn
from the Council's audited general purpose financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018.

2018

more 
than 90%

5.20% 0 - 10%

52.94% less than 
60%

97.53%

2018
Actual Target

page 54
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   Financial Statements 2018

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement (continued)
 for the year ended 30 June 2018

Measures of Financial Sustainability (continued)

Notes

(1) Includes only Recurrent Revenue and Recurrent Expenditure disclosed in the Income Statement. Excludes Capital
    Revenue Grants, Contributions, Donations and Subsidies received for capital acquisitions, Capital Income items such as
    Profit from the Sale of: Property, Plant and Equipment, Financial Assets, Real Estate and Investment Properties,
    and any Capital Expenditure such as Write Off of Assets, movements in Provisions for Restoration  and Rehabilitation
    and Revaluation Decrements that hit the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(2) Includes only Recurrent Revenue disclosed in the Income Statement. Excludes Capital Revenue Grants, Contributions 
    Donations and Subsidies received for capital acquisitions. Also excludes any Capital Income items such as Profit from
    the Sale of: Property, Plant and Equipment, Financial Assets, Real Estate and Investment Properties.

(3) Asset Renewals are defined as expenditures on existing assets to return the assets to their original service
    potential (or useful life) while satisfying current construction and required standards.  Such expenditure is required
    periodically to reinstate existing assets and may reduce operating and maintenance costs.

    These ratios are the relevant measures of financial sustainability required to be reported under section 178(1) of the Local Government
    Regulation 2012 .

    Definitions are sourced from the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline issued by the Department of Local Government, 
    Community Recovery and Resilience. 

2018 2018
Actual Target

page 55
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Councillors of Lockyer Valley Regional Council 
 
Report on the Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying current year financial sustainability statement of Lockyer 
Valley Regional Council for the year ended 30 June 2018, comprising the statement, 
explanatory notes, and the certificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the Chief 
Executive Officer. 

In accordance with section 212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in 
all material respects, the current year financial sustainability statement of Lockyer Valley 
Regional Council for the year ended 30 June 2018 has been accurately calculated. 

Basis of opinion  

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing 
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
current year financial sustainability statement section of my report.  

I am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the statement in 
Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code 
and the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Emphasis of matter – basis of accounting 

I draw attention to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current year financial 
sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management 
(Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of fulfilling the council’s reporting 
responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012. As a result, the statement 
may not be suitable for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Other Information 

Other information comprises the information included in Lockyer Valley Regional Council’s 
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2018, but does not include the current year 
financial sustainability statement and my auditor’s report thereon. At the date of this auditor’s 
report, the other information was the general purpose financial statements, long-term 
financial sustainability statement and annual report. 

My opinion on the current year financial sustainability statement does not cover the other 
information and accordingly I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
However, as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, I have expressed a 
separate opinion on the general purpose financial report. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Councillors of Lockyer Valley Regional Council 
 
Report on the Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement 

Opinion 
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Valley Regional Council for the year ended 30 June 2018, comprising the statement, 
explanatory notes, and the certificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the Chief 
Executive Officer. 

In accordance with section 212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in 
all material respects, the current year financial sustainability statement of Lockyer Valley 
Regional Council for the year ended 30 June 2018 has been accurately calculated. 

Basis of opinion  

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing 
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
current year financial sustainability statement section of my report.  

I am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the statement in 
Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code 
and the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Emphasis of matter – basis of accounting 

I draw attention to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current year financial 
sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management 
(Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of fulfilling the council’s reporting 
responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012. As a result, the statement 
may not be suitable for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Other Information 

Other information comprises the information included in Lockyer Valley Regional Council’s 
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2018, but does not include the current year 
financial sustainability statement and my auditor’s report thereon. At the date of this auditor’s 
report, the other information was the general purpose financial statements, long-term 
financial sustainability statement and annual report. 

My opinion on the current year financial sustainability statement does not cover the other 
information and accordingly I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
However, as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, I have expressed a 
separate opinion on the general purpose financial report. 

 
In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the council for the current year financial sustainability statement 

The council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current year 
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012. 
The council’s responsibility also includes such internal control as the council determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately 
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial sustainability 
statement 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the current year financial 
sustainability statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of this statement.  

My responsibility does not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance 
of the reported ratios, nor on the council’s future sustainability. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the statement, including the 
disclosures, and whether the statement represents the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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I communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 

 

 

18 September 2018 

Melissa Read Queensland Audit Office 
as delegate of the Auditor-General  Brisbane 

 

100 Lockyer Valley Regional Council



 
I communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 

 

 

18 September 2018 

Melissa Read Queensland Audit Office 
as delegate of the Auditor-General  Brisbane 
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For more information phone 1300 005 872,  
email mailbox@lvrc.qld.gov.au or visit www.lockyervalley.qld.gov.au

Lockyer Valley Regional Council, PO Box 82, Gatton Qld 4343
© Lockyer Valley Regional Council
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